
MEETING AGENDA

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108)
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213

APRIL 11,2016,7:00 P.M.

1. Proclamation: Donate Life Month.

2. Approval of the minutes of the March 28, 2016 regular meeting of the City Council.

3. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the 3-year extension (through September 30, 2019) of the
garbage service contract with Waste Management of Central Alabama.

4. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for landscape maintenance services for the Library,
villages, and municipal complex and authorizing the execution of a 36-month contract for same.

5. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for janitorial services for defined areas of the
municipal complex and authorizing the execution of a 36-month contract for same.

6. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of an agreement between the City and
Gillespie Construction, LLC with respect to the construction of a sidewalk along Overbrook Road

7. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is April 25, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. in
the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213.

8. Comments from residents.

9. Adjourn.



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

Telephone: 205.802.3800

Facsimile: 205.879.6913

www.mtnbrook.org

NATIONAL DONATE LIFE MONTH PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, one of the most meaningful gifts that a human being can bestow upon
another is the gift of life; and

WHEREAS, 30,970 candidates on the nation's organ transplant waiting list received a
life-saving or life-enhancing organ transplant in 2015; of those 395 received an organ transplant
in Alabama; and

WHEREAS, a new patient is added to the national waiting list for an organ transplant
every 21 minutes; and

WHEREAS, nearly 121,416 men, women and children are currently on the national
waiting list for organ transplantations, of which approximately 3,294 are on Alabama's list; and

WHEREAS, 6,045 candidates on the national waiting list died waiting for an organ
transplant which did not come in time; of those 169 were on Alabama's waiting list.

WHEREAS, the Alabama Organ Center is the non-profit, independent organ recovery
organization dedicated to the recovery of high quality organs and tissues for transplantation
therapy; and

WHEREAS, City of Mountain Brook Alabama supports the Alabama Organ Center's
life-saving mission;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, LAWRENCE T. ODEN, Mayor of the City of Mountain
Brook, Alabama, do hereby proclaim April 2016 as

DONATE LIFE MONTH

In the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama we honor all who have given the gift of life,
we focus our efforts on the extreme need for organ and tissue donors, and we encourage
residents to designate their donation decision and share the decision to donate with family
members.

Given under my hand and the City of Mountain Brook,
Alabama, on this 11th day of April, in the year of our
Lord, 2016, and of the Independence of the United
States of America, 240th.

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor



A®C
Alabama Organ Center

March 9, 2016

j

The Honorable Terry Oden
Mayor
56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

Dear Mayor Oden,

In 2003, President Bush first announced that the month of April will be observed as National
Donate Life Month, a time to raise public awareness of the critical need for organ, tissue,
marrow and blood donations.

Today, there are over 121,500 men, women and children in the United States on the organ
transplant waiting list. Unfortunately, 21 of them will die each day because an organ does not
become available in time. The need for organ donors is more critical than ever.

On behalf of the more than 3,300 citizens awaiting a second chance at life in Alabama, the
Alabama Organ Center, Alabama's organ procurement organization, requests that you sign a
proclamation designating April as Donate Life Month in Mountain Brook. This proclamation
will coincide with the national observance and may be presented during a City Council Meeting
in April or other suitable venue. If possible, we would like to have a transplant recipient or
donor family member available to receive this important proclamation and thank you for your
support.

Through awareness efforts such as this proclamation, thousands of lives can be saved or
enhanced. With your help, we will continue to bring this life-saving message to the citizens of
Mountain Brook.

Please contact Becky Davis at 731-9200 or 1-800-252-3677 if you have any questions or are
interested in pursuing this opportunity. Thank you very much for your time in considering this
request.

Sincerely,

Chris Meeks

Executive Director

Enclosure

502 20th Street South • Birmingham, AL 35233

1.800.252,3677 * 205.731.9200 * 205.731.9250 fax • www.alabamaorgancenter.org



VI-

A®C
Alabama Organ Center

NATIONAL DONATE LIFE MONTH PROCLAMATION

CITY, Alabama PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, one of the most meaningful gifts that a human being can bestow upon another is the
gift of life; and

WHEREAS, 30,970* candidates on the nation's organ transplant waiting list received a life-
saving or life-enhancing organ transplant in 2015; of those 395* received an organ transplant in
Alabama; and

WHEREAS, a new patient is added to the national waiting list for an organ transplant every 21*
minutes; and

WHEREAS, nearly 121,416* men, women and children are currently on the national waiting list
for organ transplantations, of which approximately 3,294* are on Alabama's list; and

WHEREAS, 6,045* candidates on the national waiting list died waiting for an organ transplant
which did not come in time; of those 169* were on Alabama's waiting list.

WHEREAS, the Alabama Organ Center is the non-profit, independent organ recovery
organization dedicated to the recovery of high quality organs and tissues for transplantation
therapy; and

WHEREAS, CITY, Alabama supports the Alabama Organ Center's life-saving mission;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MAYOR'S NAME, Mayor of the City of CITY, Alabama, do hereby
proclaim April 2016 as

DONATE LIFE MONTH

In CITY, Alabama we honor all who have given the gift of life, we focus our efforts on the
extreme need for organ and tissue donors, and we encourage residents to designate their donation
decision and share the decision to donate with family members.

On this, the day of April, 2016.

The Honorable MAYOR'S NAME, Mayor
CITY, Alabama

imi

*Data source: United Network for Organ Sharing, 2016



Minute Book 87 1009

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION

MARCH 28,2016

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council
Room (A 106) of City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, the 28th day of March, 2016. The Council President
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results:

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. Pritchard, III, Council President Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor

Absent: Alice B. Womack

Also present were City Attorney Carl Johnson, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven
Boone.

1. AGENDA

1. Phase 5b Sidewalk property request - Roger Morris and Billy Harbert (Appendix 1).

It was the general consensus of the members present that the requested change is too late to be
considered in that the State just closed the bidding for the project and any change at this time would a)
most certainly result in a substantial cost increase along with significant delays in the construction
timeline and b) could possibly result in the project, in either form, not being approved.

2. Conditional Use at 2419 Canterbury Road - Dana Hazen (Resolution No. 2016-041 was added to the
formal agenda).

3. Position upgrade at Public Works - Ronnie Vaughn (Resolution No. 2016-042 was added to the
formal agenda).

4. 3-party agreement regarding maintenance of a sewer line and retaining wall at 2941 Balmoral Road -
Carl Johnson, Dana Hazen (Resolution No. 2016-043 was added to the formal agenda).

5. Review of the matters to be considered at the formal [7 p.m.] meeting.

2. CERTIFICATION

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and
correct synopsis of the discussion from the meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook,
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A 106) on March 28,2016, and that the meeting was duly
called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said meeting.

City Clerk

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2016\20160328 Minutes.doc March 28,2016



Minute Book 87 1015

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA
MARCH 28,2016

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 28th day of March, 2016. The Council President called the
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results:

Present:

Absent:

Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. Pritchard, III, Council President Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor

Alice B. Womack

Boone.

Also present were City Attorney Carl Johnson, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the
transaction of business

1. RECOGNITION OF DEPARTMENTAL EMPLOYEES OF THE YEAR

The following departmental "Employee(s) of the Year" were recognized:

Kevin Wilson - Fire

Ashley Eason (civilian) - Police
Drew Moore - Police

Latorya Mines - Parks and Recreation
Rodney Wood - Public Works

2. CONSENT AGENDA

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects:

Approval of the minutes of the March 14, 2016 regular meeting of the City Council.

2016-037 Declare certain property surplus and authorizing it sale at public Exhibit 1
Internet auction

2016-038 Authorize the execution of a contract between the City and Exhibit 2,
Jefferson County Commission for the City's rental of voting Appendix 1
machines and related equipment and other election services
with respect to the August 23, 2016 municipal election

2016-039 Authorize the execution of an agreement with the Birmingham- Exhibit 3,
Jefferson County Transit Authority (MAX) for their provision Appendix 2
of public transportation services in the City for fiscal year
ending September 30,2017

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2016\20160328 Minutes.doc March 28,2016



1016 Minute Book 87

2016-040 Authorize the execution of an agreement for utility between the Appendix 3
City and Alabama Department of Transportation in conjunction
with Project CMAQ-NR 13(908), a utility project for sidewalks
along Brookwood Road, Crosshill Road and Oakdale Drive,
Phase 9, (Project Reference No. 100065353)

2016-041 Approve the conditional service use application submitted by Exhibit 4,
Emma Suttles to allow Pilates and spinning classes at 2419 Appendix 4
Canterbury Road, subject to the class sizes and times be limited
to that presented by the applicant in conjunction with the
conditional use request

2016-042 Authorize the creation of one (1) additional Senior Arborist Exhibit 5,
position (Class no. 8267, Grade 18, Steps 2—8) for the Public Appendix 5
Works Department to be filled at the discretion of the City
Manager in accordance with the "Rules and Regulations" of the
Personnel Board of Jefferson County

2016-043 Authorize the execution of a 3-party agreement between the Lee Exhibit 6,
H. Riley and Kristen O. Riley ("homeowners"), Jefferson Appendix 6
County, Alabama, and the City of Mountain Brook with respect
to maintenance of sewer line and retaining wall for the property
located at 2941 Balmoral Road in Mountain Brook

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Smith and
their immediate adoption was moved by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. The minutes and
resolutions were then considered by the City Council. Council member Carl seconded the motion to adopt the
foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was
recorded as follows:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton

Nays: None

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Council minutes and resolutions (Nos. 2016-037
through 2016-043) are adopted by a vote of 4—0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same.

3. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1950) RE-ESTABLISHING VOTING DISTRICTS
AND ASSIGNING POLLING LOCATIONS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK WITH RESPECT TO THE 2016 [AND FUTURE]
MUNICIPAL GENERAL, SPECIAL, AND RUN-OFF ELECTIONS (EXHIBIT 7, APPENDIX
7)

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and
comments from the audience.

There being no comments or discussion. Council President Smith called for a motion. Council
member Shelton made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the
immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent to the
immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived.
The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard and was carried, as follows:

J:\Minutes & Agen(las\Council\2016\20160328 Minutes.doc March 28,2016



Minute Book 87 1017

Ayes; Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. Pritchard, III, Council President Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton

Nays: None

The Council President Smith declared the motion carried by a vote of 4—0.

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Pro Tempore
Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl.
Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. Pritchard, III, Council President Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton

Nays: None

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1950) is hereby adopted by a vote
of 4—0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same.

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY

COUNCIL

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be
held on Monday, April 11,2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street,
Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) for more information.

5. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned
the meeting.

6. CERTIFICATION

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A108) on March 28,2016, and that the meeting was duly called and held
in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum
was present.

City Clerk

EXHIBIT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-037

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which are
no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing
body to dispose of unneeded personal property.

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2016\20160328 Minutes.doc March 28,2016



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-045

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the
City"), as follows:

1. That in accordance with applicable provisions of law and Section 33 of the
contract between the City and Waste Management, Inc. ("Contractor") dated September 4, 1998
("the Contract"), the term of the Contract shall be extended for three years from the current date
of expiration (September 30, 2016) to September 30, 2019;

2. That the terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in effect for the term

of the extension hereby approved, as further set forth in correspondence dated March 15, 2016,
from Michael P. Mitchell, Public Sector, to Mountain Brook City Manager Sam Gaston, which
correspondence is incorporated herein by reference.

3. That the mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute such contractual
documents or instruments as may be necessary and appropriate to give effect to this resolution.

ADOPTED: This 11th day of April, 2016.

Council President

APPROVED: This 11th day of April, 2016.

Mayor

CERTIFICATION

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on April 11,2016, as same appears in the minutes of
record of said meeting.

Steven Boone, City Clerk

Waste Management 2016-045



lAfHH
WASTE MANAGEMENT

March 15, 2016

Sam Gaston

City Manager

City of Mountain Brook

P.O. Box 130009

Mountain Brook, AL 35213

Dear Mr. Gaston

The current contract between Waste Away Group, Inc. (dba Waste Management) and

the City of Mountain Brook will expire September 30,2016. Per the terms of the contract

described In Section 3, paragraph B; the contract may be renewed by mutual agreement for

additional three-year terms.

Please accept this letter as our formal offer to renew the agreement for an additional

three-year term beginning October 1, 2016 under the same terms and conditions described in

the contract.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide the City of Mountain Brook's residential collection

services. We look forward to continuing this mutually beneficial business relationship. If you

have any questions, please call me at 205-281-2147.

Sincerely,

Michael P. Mitchell

Public Sector

Waste Management



tii

11^ ̂ia mm tm ii¥a s.irai/^^iiM

oxOi ,otJ: i b ifc VI

j ".X j.- i-.i.-'

Vi>v

aOOiii iitf::V"!00iV; k' /?L.'

tt0O0i:.r xoa ;o.9

EV:.'ir. jA .;jocn«:5 ni»br:uoi\i

(iOicGb - iM "li^xO

br;o (jn^rfk',)on:ilVl ^:c:b) .xnl voV./A sAiAA/ n':i3V^j:;k-;i :i;j^rAr:oj A;k)M,!.> :>riT

iji. ijnc : sril io ;^rn9i ariJ .SlOi" ,0c iiidkkijq-f^V 9jiqx9 ilbx doo'it] 'fxAnivOivi ij x 1;i

■jC' : n9Tt9k ah ium vd n0vVk!i3 J sd vvrv: j.:)SiTi-;o;;; oH:? ,0 koiAv^ rx b^Cii i:.'w;Db
.effiic; •k.&y-::-'v"!n' Isr.Oilibbo

}Bn:.:bif- t g lot koo'iqr krd v>'9rc"=i o:; 'k-rv? isr,rio: -{ua cr* leOvJi ik.i; ••b?.t'S'^]
qj bs.d ̂ jKkb '::u:rU:b:uy) bkk .kvnq- -k'nGc qOj nsbki.; uVOS! ,!. •kA...< -:':0 ^f.iriJdyed rn!0l k-o/- ;.j sn;

. •kxori'. ! 9r>:'

icjk . : :kO: k". ;K/V'' i :c y'T': vi'.; sAiivoiq y;>i..k-oqvjc --c; i.'', ^ :- iuvi!
cy u .-■-cc;;>. :V - 'A.k- ., . . -o. ^ U- ■ - .y y k >'C: -iV -; : . . ■.-

.vvVx--i:3A--cO.> q/Ti 11b:> Afiobaskp 9vsn

,V •k-Vi ii:;

lO"' ■• li' ;):iC!iVi

Jviq/fUirkoikviA



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

FORM OF CONTRACT (CONSTITUTING GENERAL
SPECIFICATIONS) FOR THE COLLECTION AND

DISPOSAL OF RESIDENTIAL GARBAGE, TRASH AND

RECYCLABLE MATERIALS AND THE COLLECTION AND

DISPOSAL OF SMALL BUSINESS GARBAGE AND TRASH

^  r 1998



Contract for th.e Collection and Disposal of
Residential Garbage/ Trash and Recyclable
Materials and the Collection and Disposal

of Small Business Garbage and Trash

Section 1. Definitions.

"City" shall mean the City of Moiontain Brook/ an Alabama

municipal corporation/

"Contract" shall mean this agreement.

"Contractor" shall mean Waste Away Group, Inc., an Alabama

corporation.

"Department" shall mean the Streets and Sanitation Department

of City.

"Garbage" shall mean all solid or semi-solid refuse subject to

decay or putrefaction, tin cans, bottles and other food and drink

containers, food packaging materials, paper and all waste of animal

or vegetable matter except: (1) large appliances, heavy furniture

and cans with a capacity in excess of forty (40) gallons, or, in

the case of curbside service, cans with a capacity in excess of one

hundred (100) gallons; (2) medical waste (not including fire

stations); (3) trees, wallpaper, roofing material, plaster,

concrete, concrete blocks or other substances that may accumulate

as a result of the clearing of lots or land or of the repairs to,

or construction of, buildings undertaken and performed by



contractors; (4) batteriss and tires; and (5) waste or refuse which

is defined, characterized or designated as hazardous by the United

States Environmental Protection Agency or approoriate agency of the

State of Alabama by, or pursuant to, federal or state law, or which

cannot be lawrully disposed of at a sanitary landfill without

special treatment or handling. Notwithstanding the foregoing

exceptions, "Garbage" shall include £.ny materials not included in

the definition of "Trash" in this Contract and not otherwise

included in this definition of "Garbage" if the landfill used by

Contractor zor Garbage will accept such materials.

"Health Department" shall mean the health department of

Jefferson County or the State of Alabama having jurisdiction over

the particular activity or geographical area involved.

"Landiill Facility" shall mean a landfill facility selected by

Contractor, approved by City and operated, sanctioned and licensed

under the laws of the State of -Alabama.

"Recyclable Materials" shall include, at a minimum, newsnrint,

aluminum, steel and other metal cans. No. 1 and No. 2 plastic

containers, HDPE clear plastic milk jugs and PET plastic sofi drink

containers, and cardboard and cardboard boxes, including food

packaging made or light weight cardboard materials, shoe boxes and

ail household and office paper products (including office naoer,

compu—.^r pcper, magazines, teleohone direciories, envelooes, ^e



folders and junk mail), but excluding paper towels, paper tissues

and food containers wiiich have come in direct contact with food.

Contractor may add other products as desired.

"Residence" shall mean an occupied dwelling (whether a single-

family dwelling, a condominium, a townhouse or an apartment) within

the limits of City,

"State" shall mean the State of Alabama.

"Trash" shall mean nonputrescible combustible and

noncombustible solid wastes, including tree limbs no longer than

four (4) feet, bagged grass clippings and leaves (and loose leaves

from November 1 of each year to March 15 of the following year, as

provided in Section 2.B. of this Contract), old fu2miture,

mattresses, bed springs, wood, small debris, cloth, paper,

cardboard, cardboard boxes, tin cans, glass, crockery, metals and

other similar materials, excluding: (a) items weighing over 2,000

pounds; (b) items (other than tree limbs) over ten (10) feet in

length; and (c) items excepted in the definition of "Garbage"

herein.

Section 2. Scope of Work.

A. Garbage. It shall be the duty of Contractor to collect

and deposit at a Landfill Facility all items of residential Garbage

and designated commercial Garbage generated within the corporate



— oj. CiLy. Dspend.iiig' upon whsnhLSi" tiis base proDosal or an

alternate proposal is selected by City, Contractor shall pick up in

enclosed vehicles containerized or bagged residential Garbage

located at the rear of the premises of each Residence, or at

curbside, and retutti containers to their previous location with

lids properly in place, either once or twice each week, Monday

through Friday, rizty-two (52) weeks per year. Contractor shall

not be required to pick up Garbage in containers larger than forty

(40) gallons except for Garbage in refuse carts as described in

Section 6 of this Contract if Garbage service is provided at

curbside. All Garbage containers shall be required to have

handles. Contractor shall provide an adequate number of dumpsters,

having an adequate capacity, for, and shall pick up Garbage located

at, all municipal buildings, parks, fire stations and other city

facilities, except schools, at no cost to City.

B. Trash. Contractor shall collect all items of Trash

located at the curbside of each Residence in City once each week,

Monday through Friday, fifty-two (52) weeks per year. Contractor

will not be required to pick up trees, wallpaper, roofing material,

plaster, concrete, concrete blocks or other substances which result

from che clearing of land, or of the repairs to, or construction

oz, buildrngs undertaken and performed by contractors. Contractor

will not be required to collect more than ten (10) cubic yards of

Trash from any Residence during each pickuo. Any additional Trash

will be collected on subsequent trips. Loose leaves will be



collected from each Residence/ at curbside, once during each of the

following periods each year: from November 1 to Thanksgiving/ from

Thanksgiving to December 24, from December 26 to January 31 and

from February 1 to March 15. By October 15 of each year during the

term of this Contract, Contractor shall mail to each Residence a

schedule of when loose leaves shall be collected from such

Residence during each of said four periods. Each collection of

loose leaves shall be scheduled within a period of one week. For

example, the schedule for a certain Residence might read as

follows:

First Collection November 2, 1998 - November 6, 1998
Second Collection November 30, 1998 - December 4, 1998
Third Collection December 28, 1998 - January 2, 1999
Fourth Collection February 1, 1999 - February 5, 1999

C. Recyclable Materials. Contractor shall collect

Recyclable Materials located at the curbside of each Residence,

except apartments. The Recyclable Materials may be commingled at

curbside and shall be placed in containers supplied by Contractor.

Contractor shall collect the Recyclable Materials once each week,

Monday through Friday, fifty-two (52) weeks per year. Recyclable

Materials shall be picked up in fully enclosed collection trucks.

Trailers may not be used for the collection of R.ecyclable

Materials.

D. Change of Schedule. Contractor shall furnish to City

Manager and the Department a map and detailed written info2nnation

concerning all routes and schedules, including the day on v/hich



9^3>2rl3ags, usrash and 3recyclai)le matesrials vrlll bs collsctsd at eacfci

Residence. No change may be made in the collection schedule

without the prior written consent of City. Contractor must give

the City Manager and the Department at least thirty (30) days'

prior written notice of any requested change with respect to the

perrormance of the Services, including, without limitation, days of

collection, routing and any proposed change in equipment used.

S. Collection Days. Garbage, Trash and Recyclable Materials

shall be picked up each day, Monday through Friday (exceot

holidays, as provided hereinafter), and the Garbage, Trash and

Recyclable Materials for each Residence shall be collected on the

same day; provided, however, that Trash pickup which requires use

of a knuckleboom may be conducted at a Residence on a dav other

than the regular Trash collection day for such Residence, but, in

no event, more than seven (7) days after the scheduled collection

date on which the Trash requiring a knuckleboom was not collected.

At least one (1) knuckleboom, with a capacity of at least fifteen

(15) cubic yards, must be available and in use in City every Monday

through Friday between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and Sunset (as used

m this Contract, "Sunset" shall mean sunset as established by the

National Weather Service).

F. Holidays. Contractor shall not be recruired to collect

Qaroage, Trasn or R.ecyclable Materials on the five (5) following

holidays: Nev/ wear's Day, Fourth of July, Labor Dav, Thanksgiving



Day and Ciizristiinas Day. Zf a norrnaHy schadnled pickup falls on on©

or the aoove holidays/ collections shall be on the next working

day.

G. Collection Hours. The collections described herein shall

be between the hours or 7:00 A.M. and Sunset, Monday through

Friday; provided, however, that in the event of emergencies, or

with the prror approval of the Department, collections may be made

on Saturday between 7:00 A.M. and Sunset.

K. Storms and Other Disasters. If a natural disaster, such

as a hurricane, tornado, ice storm or snow storm, results in an

unusually large amount of Trash, limbs or debris (collectively,

"Debris") being deposited in the streets of City, Contractor will,

upon the instruction ot City, collect the Debris and transport it

to a site agreed upon by City and Contractor. If the Debris is

placed in City's landfill, the charge shall be $6.00 per cubic

yard, and if the Debris is placed in a Landfill Facilitv selected

by the Contractor (other than City's landfill) , the charge shall be

$8.00 per cubic yard. All Debrrs shall be removed v/ithin sixty

(60) days zollowrng instruction trom City to proceed with such

work. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this

subparagrapn, Crty shatl have the rrght to contract v/ith another

contractor for the removal of the Debris.



Section 3. Contractor's Relation to City; Texan

A. xnoependent Contractor. It is exoressly agreed and

understood that Contractor xs in all respects an independent

contractor as to the work provided for herein ("Services") and is,

xn no respect, an agent, servant or employee of City, Neither this

Contract, nor any of the obligations or duties of Contractor under

this Contract, may be assigned, except with the prior written

consent or City. No such consent shall be construed as causing

City to be in contractual privity with the assignee of the Contract

or subject City to liability of any kind to the assignee. City

reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon sixty (60) days

prior written notice if Contractor makes a substantial change in

irs corporate storucture or its ownership without the prior written

consent or City. City shall not 'unreasonably withhold any consent

requested hereunder.

3. Terms and Renewal. The Contract shall commence on

October 1, 1998 and expire on September 30, 2001, subject to any

restrictions, limitations and conditions placed on City's

contractual authority by State law, it being acknowledged that the

Contract is related to the performance of a governmental function

or City and is subject to the law applicable thereto, including the

law pertaining to the power to contract. This Contract may be

renewed, from time to time, by agreement of City and Contractor,

upon the same terms contained in the Contract, pro-vided that the

term or any sucn renewal may not exceed a period of three years,



Section 4. Quality of Sezrvice; Laws; Methods; Default

A. Office and Telephone. Contractor shall maintain a toll-

free telephone number to be manned Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m.

to 5:00 p.m., except for the following holidays: New Year's Dav,

Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

Contractor shall maintain, at its cost, a telephone listed in the

name in which it does business as Contractor and it shall nrovide

—ull^'-itie (not recorded) answering se2rvics during the times and

days referred to hereinbefore. Contractor shall provide an

adequate number of telephone lines so that under normal

circumstances there will not be unreasonable delays to residents of

City trying to contact Contractor.

B. Supervision of Service; Uniforms. Contractor shall

provide and maintain adequate and competent suoervision during the

p2r^.ormance o.:. i-he Services, and shall appoint a resident manager

who will be in charge of the Services . All directives given by the

Department to the resident manager, when consistent with the

provisions of the Contract, shall be binding upon Contractor.

Contractor shall zurther maintain continuous surveillance th®

Services. Contractor shall provide its employees and other

personnel who work within City uniforms of neat aooearance, and

Contractor shall require such employees and other oersonnel to wear

such uniforms.



C. Qualified Personnel. Contractor shall use only personnel

who are oualiried to perform the Services and shall reouire its

employees to serve the public in a courteous/ helpful and imnartial

manner. The Services shall be performed in an efficient and

^o-kmanlike manner by careful and competent personnel who are

thoroughly ramiliar with the type of work being performed/ and the

performance of the Seorvices shall be subject to the inspection and

approval of City.

D. Kethods of Collection. Garbage may be transferred from

a container located at a Residence into leak-proof containers used

by Contractor in carrying Garbage to collection trucks. Such

transfer/ however performed/ shall be done in a sanitary manner and

any Garbage spilled in making such transfer shall be picked un by

Contractor. Garbage containers shall be .returned to their

locations in an upright position, with their lids oroDsrly in

pls-ce. Collecuion or Garbage shall be made from each Residence at

the place where Garbage containers are located, and the area around

the containers shall be left free from any Garbage spilled during

*—b.e collection. Containers picked up at the rear of a Residence

shall be returned to the rear of the Residence with their lids in

place and shall not be left at the curb. Contractor shall not be

responsii:J.e zor Cleaning up unsanitary conditions around the

—on^ctiners causec by the negligence or carelessness of the occunant

ot tne Residence. Care shall be taken by employees of Contractor

to prevent damage to containers by rough treatment. Smoiovees of

10



Contiractor shall not be irec^ifed to expose themselves to the danger

of being bitten by dogs to perzosrm the Services in any case where

such animals are allowed to roam at large. Collection of Trash and

Recyclable Materials shall be made from the place where the Trash

and Recyclable Materials are located at curbside, which must be no

more than ten (10) feet zrom the edge of a roadway or alley. The

containers or bins for Trash and Recyclable Materials shall be

replaced in an upright position and in such a manner as not to

block access to driveways or mailboxes. The areas around the

containers or bins shall be left free of Trash or Recyclable

Materials spilled during the collection process. Lids must be

properly replaced on containers which have lids.

E. Complaints; Response to Complaints. Contractor shall

make every reasonable efrort to provide high Quality sezrvice and to

have no unresolved complaints regarding collection of Garbage,

Trash or Recyclable Materials. The Department will receive

complaints from parties regarding collection of Garbage, Trash and

Recyclable Materials (individually, "Complaint" and, collectively,

"Complaints") . Contractor shall resolve each Complaint with

respect to the collection of Garbage within thirty-six (36) hours

after receipt of notice of such Complaint by Contractor from the

Department. Contractor shall resolve each Coraolaint v/ith resoect

to Trash and Recyclable Materials collection within seventv-two

(72) hours after receipt of notice cf such Complaint by Contractor

from the Department. If it is alleged by a complaining oartv or



City that Contractor failed to resolve a Complaint within the

®PP— period, then the zollowing" procedures shall be

followed:

1. Contracuor and the Department shall jointly investicrate

each alleged failure on the part of Contractor to resolve

within the time periods snecified above.

Should Contractor and the Department jointly determine

tnat any Complaint was not resolved within the annlicable

time period, then the provisions of subparagraph 3. below

shall apply.

2. Should Contractor and the Department be unable to agree

whether a Complaint was resolved by Contractor within the

applicable time period, then such dispute . shall be

submitted to an independent arbitrator selected by City

and Contractor for resolution by such arbitrator. An

c.rbi«_raL_or shall be selected tor each one-year neriod

during the term of the Contract (from October 1 of each

year through September 30 of the following year) ,

beginning with October i, 1998. Should City and

Contractor be unable to agree on an arbitrator, then City

and Contractor shall request that the presiding judae for

the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, .Alabama, appoint

an arbitrator. The non-prevailing party in such

on snaijL pay tne zee ot the arbitrator. To h®''D



minimize the cost of the arbitration process, Complaints

shall be arbitrated quarterly, at the same arbitration

hearing, or at such more frequent intervals agreed upon,

in writing, by City and Contractor. Quarterly

arbitrations shall be held within ten days after the end

of each quarter {quarters shall be October through

December, Januari'" uhrough March, April through June and

July through September) in the conference room at the

Mountain Brook City Hall, or at another sits agreed upon

by City and Contractor, Should the arbitrator find that

any Complaint was not resolved within the applicable time

period, then the provisions of subparagraph 3. below

shall apply. City may withhold from the final payment

due Contractor under the Contract the amount equal to

$100.00 multiplied by the number of Complaints filed

during the final quarter of the term of the Contract

which are to be arbitrated plus the number of Complaints

which have been arbitrated but for which opinions have

not been issued by the arbitrator. Any portion of such

funds withheld by City which are determined to be due to

Contractor after all Complaints have been arbitrated and

opinions issued with respect thereto, shall be paid to

Contractor v/ithin ten days after the day City receives

one last ooinion from the arbitrator. Either City or

Contractor, upon six (5) months' prior v/ritten notice to

the other oarty, may terminate the arbitration provisions



contained in this subsection 2. and in subsection 3.

below; provided, however, that arbitration shall be

conducted, and the arbitration provisions of this

subsection 2. and said subsection 3. shall be effective,

with respect to all Complaints which are unresolved when

such notice of termination is sent by City or Contractor

to the other party, regardless of whether such Complaints

had been previously submitted to the arbitrator. All

unresolved Complaints which have not been submitted to

the arbitrator, shall be promptly submitted to the

arbitrator.

3 . Contractor shall pay City the sum of one hundred dollars

($100.00) for each Complaint which is not resolved within

the time periods provided herein to compensate City for

costs incurred by City in administering and responding to

Complaints which were not resolved in a timely manner.

Such amount shall be paid to City within ten (10) days
t

after the end of the month in which notice of the

Complaint was received by Contractor; provided, that if

it is determined by the arbitrator that Contractor did

not resolve a Complaint within the applicable time

period, such amount shall be paid to City within ten days

Contractor receives written notice of the

arbitrator's decision.



(d) Cont2ra.cfco2r shall not he r"e<^ir'ed to nssolve any Comnlaint

within the time periods set forth above when the

complaining" party railed to comply with the recniirements

of this Contract regarding the placement and/or

containment or Garbage, Trash or Recyclable Materials or

railed to notiry the Department within thirty-six (36)

hours or the missed collection, (except for parties who

were out or town during any part of said thirty-six-hour

period) , or when the Department failed to notify

Contractor of the Complaint within eight (8) hours of

receipt by the Department of the Comnlaint. However,

Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to resolve an"y

such Complaint as soon as reasonably practical.

?. Compliance with Laws. Contractor hereby agrees to abide

by all applicable federal, state, county and city laws, ordinances

and regulations.

G. Default. If Contractor fails to perform the Services in

accordance with the terms or this Contract or necrlects or refuses

to comply with the provisions of this Contract, or if Contractor

willfully, knowingly or repeatedly violates any ordinance of Citv

or any of the laws or regular ions of the State or anv rules or

r=:gu.:.auions Oi. the Health Deoartmem, nov^ or hereinafter enac^^d

pertaining to the collection, removal or disposal of Garbage, Trash

or Recyclable Materials, City may give Contractor written notice of

-D



ajiy such, violations at its local o^zice adcfess and the failuts o£

Contractor to remedy or correct such violations within three (3)

days from Contractor's receipt of such notice shall constitute a

default by Contractor under this Contract.

H. Ternnnation of Contract; Liticfation; Force Majeure. If

City initiates litigation to terminate this Contract or to enforce

any o^. ius rights under this Contract/ Contractor agrees that if

City prevails in such litigation, Contractor will reimburse City

for all costs, fees and expenses, including reasonable attorneys'

fees and court costs, incurred by City in such legal action. The

termination Oj. this Contract shall not relieve Contractor of th®

responsibility from the payment of such fees and exx>enses or any

aamages which Cicy may incur by Reason of Contractor's default

under this Contract. ±z the pertormance by Contractor of any of

its obligations under this Contract shall be interrupted or delayed

by an act oi God or. as nhe result of war, riot, civil commotion,

strike or labor unrest, governmental action or any other event

beyond Contractor's reasonable control, then it shall be excused

i.rom such pertormance tor the duration of such event. All Garbaae,

3-^^ Recyclable Manenals which should have been collected

du_ing i_hat period will be collected as soon as practicable after

the end of the event which caused the interruption of Contractor's

performance of the Services.



Section 5. Bqnipment:

Contractor will provide sufficient equipment to maintain

regular schedules of collections and to perform its obligations

under this Contract fully and promptly. Contractor shall provide

exclusive use of at least one (i) knuckleboom truck, with a

capacity of at least fifteen (15) cubic yards, for City, operating

at least five (5) days a week between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and

Sunset. In addition to such knuckleboom truck. Contractor shall

furnish exclusive use of a second knuckleboom truck, during the

same days and the same hours, from March 1 through August 31 of

each year as additional support as may be required, from time to

time, by the Department. Additional equipment will be provided on

an as-needed basis as required by the Department, such as

additional knucklebooms and rear loaders. All equipment shall be

maintained in good condition by Contractor. Vehicles used in

connection with the Services shall be maintained by Contractor in

a neat and sanitary condition. A.11 trucks shall be eouioped with

functioning two-way radios. All trucks are to be equinoed with

automatic dumpers for the handling of carts if the collection of

Garbage is at curbside. Recyclable Materials shall be deposited in

fully enclosed collection trucks. Trailers may not be used for the

collec-ion of Recyclable Materials. Contractor shall keep and

retain sufficient back-up trucks to replace trucks which reouire

maintenance or service. Ciry's reoresentative may insoect

Contracror's operation and equipmeno at anv reasonable time and

olace.

17



Section 6. Carts

i.A. the collection oz Garbage is at curbside, Contractor shall

provide to all residents, at the cost indicated in Contractor's

proposal, molded plastic refuse carts, with a capacity of from

ninety (90) to one hundred (100) gallons, as required by City,

whicb cart and the color thereof shall be subject to the apnroval

or City. In lieu of such carxs. Contractor may provide molded

P—2.S(_ic segmented refuse carts, capable of containing Garbage and

Recyclable Mai-erials, with a capacity ror Garbage of from ninety

(90) "CO one hundred (100) gallons, as required by City, and with a

capacity for Recyclable Materials of fourteen (14) gallons. The

segmented carus, and the color thereof, shall be subject to the

approval of City. Contractor will assemble and deliver the carts

to residents no later than September 15, 1998, and shall maintain

the carts at no additional charge. The container, lid, wheels,

axle and all necessary hardware of the carts must be covered by a

ten (10) year warranty. Any component parts of the carts or

containers which fail to perfoinn as originally designed shall be

replaced or repaired by Contractor at no charge to the resident or

to City, including, but not limited to, the following:

a. failure of the lid to prevent rainwater from entering the

container when closed on the container's bodv;

18



b. failure of the lid and/or the container body to prevent

penetration by squirrels and other rodents;

c. damage to the container body, the lid, or any component

parts caused by opening or closing the lid of the

container;

d. failure of the lid hinge to remain fully functional and

continually hold the lid in the originally designed and

intended posinion when the lid is either opened or

closed;

6. failure or an axle to remain free of excessive red rust

and corrosion, to be determined by City;

r. zailure or any plastic component to be resistant to

damage in the event of contact with any common household

or residential product or chemicals;

g. railure of any portion of the bottom of the container

body to remain impervious to damage or wear-through after

repeated contact v/ith rough and abrasive surfaces; if at

any time during the ten-year warranty period, the bottom

or any container, as a result of normal wear and tear

develops a hole so mat tt leaxs when filled with water,

- c



J.L. shall be replaced nn rts entirety and without charge

under the warranty/

h. failure of the rubber tires to remain in place and fully

se2rv-iceable, as designed and intended;

i. failure of the container body, lid, hardware, wheels, or

any component parts thereor to maintain their original

shape;

j . failure Oj. the wheels to provide continuous, easy

ss originally designed or intended;

k. failure of any container body, lid, hardware, wheels or

any component part thereof to conform to the minimum

standards specified herein; I.e., failure to use only

zirst-quality, high density, virgin resin; and

1. damage to, or zailure of, container assemblies caused bv

any .i-ncompatibility or the container and Contractor's

hydraulic dumping units.

-z a resident's cart and/or a container is destroyed or damaged so

®  —onger usab—e by someone other than Contractor, o"^

20



a cart and/or container is stolen, another cart and/or container

will promptly be made available to the resident at a cost not to

exceed the cost to Contractor for such cart and/or container plus

ten per cent (10%) of such cost.

Contractor shall rurnrsh to each small business to which

garbage service is provided up to two 90 - 100 gallon molded

plastic containers (the size to be determined by City) with a lid.

Section 7. Indemnification

Contractor shall indemnity City and its emoloyees, elected

otj-icials, agents and servants, and hold City and its emoloyees,

elected ottrcials, agents and servants harmless, from and against

all actions, causes or action, claims, demands, damages, losses and

expenses o^ any kind, including, but not limited to, attorneys'

fees and court costs, which may be asserted against, or suffered

by, City or its employees, elected officials, agents or servants

arising out of, or in connection with, the performance, or

attempted periormance, of Contractor's obligations under this

Contract uhrougn any negligent or willrul act of Contractor or its

agents, servants or employees, or through imorooer or defective

machinezy or equipment used by Contractor or its agents, servants

or employees and from any suit or judgment or other thing

whatsoever which may occur as a result of such neclicent or v/illful

^ _Qnr»cs,nc0 or arising out ot a breach of this Contract by

Contractor.



Section 8. Insurance

Contractor shall maintain worker's compensation insurance

during the term of this Contract for all of its employees.

Contractor shall also maintain during the term of this Contract

such liabiliuy and property damage insurance, as soecified

hereinai«_er, which shall protect Contractor and its agents,

servants, employees and any subcontractor performing work covered

by L-his Conuract, rrom claims for damages for personal injury,

including accidental death, as well as claims for property damages

which may arise from, operations under this Contract, whether such

operations be performed by Contractor or by any subcontractor, or

by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them.

Contraccor shall carry the following types of insurance in at least

the limits specified below;

Coverage Limits of Liabilit-v
worKer's Compensation statutory

_jmploye_ s jjiabiliwy $2,000,000 each occurrence

Liability $2,000,000 each occu'*"^^nc'='
rjxcept Automobile

Property Damage Liability $2,000,000 each occurrence
Except Automobile

Automobile Bodily Injury and $3,000,000 each occur-«n-«
Property Damage Liability "

Dmb_ei.i.a 000,000 each occurrence

upon the execution of this Contract, Contractor shall furnish City

satisfactory proof of the insurance required herein with an

insurance companv acceotah.le to C-'^v and t
-  - — ^ y oe named as an



additional insuired pasruy in all such insuzrancs policies. During

the entire term of this Contract, no later than thirty (30) days

prior CO the expiration of each such policv. Contractor shall

deliver to City a certiricate of insurance showing that such policy

has been renewed upon teirms which satisfy all requirements of this

Contract.

Section 9. Units Served

actor agrees to maintain a list of all units in City

served and to provide such list to City, within thirty (30) days

the end or each calendar quarter, beginning with the quarter

—^^^rig December 31, 1998, to be compared to City's then current

list. Contractor further agrees to provide such additional

rnrormation and data pertinent to this Contract as mav be

reasonably requested by City, except for confidential and

proprietary information of Contractor.

Section 10. Contract Price; Changes in Price

A. Contractor agrees that, based on the numbers of units set

j-oruh below, Lne monthly unit rates for the collection of Garbage,

snd Kecyclable Materials from Residences and for the

collec-ion o.;. gamage and trash trom Small Businesses shall be as

follows:

single-family residences s GS2
(excludes 20 vacant residences,
each of which shall be added as
of the end of the calendar ouarter
in which it is occupied)



apaarfcinents, condominiums
and duDlsxes

435

small businesses (in 17 of the
^18 business locations thesre asre
multiple businesses which share"a
garjpage container and all of the
businesses at each such location
shall constitute a single unit) ng

single-family residences $23.83

^P®-^^tients / condominiums and $23 °3
duDlexes

small businesses
$30.70

The numoer of viniLs served by Contractor and for which City
will be billed shall be determined as of the end of each calendar

quarter by a method jointly agreed on by City and Contractor.

During each calendar quarter City shall pay Contractor for the

number of units served as of the end of the last day of the
previous calendar quarter. The number of units set forth above

shall be in effect for the first calendar quarter of the term of

-his Contract (October 1, 1998 - December 31, 1998) . City and
Contractor agree that the number of units for which City will be
billed shall not be changed unless the dwelling units or businesses

added or deleted are identified by address. If the number of units

served is not determined as of the end of a calendar qparter. City
snail ne billed for the same number of units in the succeedino

calendar quarter as it was in that calendar quarter. The prices

hereinbetore are the base prices which shall be naid to
Contractor during the first two years of the term of this Contract.

Th.£ rja.se ur"2.c£s ser, fc'—^ "nas*—
"  mes.y joe ;.nczrsas£d or*

2^



decreased during the last year of the term of this Contract, based

upon any increase or decrease in the cost of living, detezntiined as

follows: as soon as practicable after September, 2000, and each

September thereafter during any renewal term, the increase or

aecrease, it any, in the cost or Irving shall be computed, using as

the basis of such computation the "Revised Consumers Price Index

For All Urban Consumers - South Region 1982-84 = 100 published by

the Bureau or Labor Statistics or the United States Denartment of

Labor ("rndex") . Ir there is an increase or decrease in such Index

for uhe month of September, 2000 as compared "to the Index for the

month of September, 1998, eighty per cent (80%) of such percentage

Oi. incrciciSe or decrease may be computed and added to, or subtracted

from, the unit prices set rorth hereinbefore for the third contract

year to determine the cost of living adjustment, if any, to be

applied to such unit prices for services to be rendered during the

third year of this Contract. If mutually agreed to by City and

Contractor in v/riting, with respect to any year during a renewal

term, the unit prices set forth hereinbefore may be increased or

decreased by using the foregoing procedure to modify such unit base

prices (by determining the percentage of increase or decrease in

the Index for the month of September of that year - as comoared to

-lie ^ndex _or the month or September of the crevious year) , but

such un.Li_ pr_ces may not be increased or decreased by more than

~^ Csnu (80"o) Oi. sucn percentaoe ot increase o**" "'n

the Index.



B. Bayment. Contractor shall bill City within ten (10) days

rollowing the end of each month for Services rendered for such

month. City shall pay Contractor before the last day of the month

following the month to which the bill relates. Such billing and
payment shall be based on the rates as set forth in this Contract

and the number of units to be determined as provided in this

Contract.

Section 11. Authoirization for Execution of Contract

Simultaneously with the execution of this Contract, City shall
rumrsh Contractor a certified copy of a resolution duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook authorizing the
Mayor or the City oz Mountain Brook to execute this Contract for

and on behalf of City, and Contractor shall furnish. City a
certified copy of a corporate resolution duly adopted by the board
oz directors of Contractor authorizing the execution of this

Conrracr, ror and on behalf of Contractor, by the corporate officer

of Contractor who executes this Contract.

Section 12. Captions.

^he caprions oz the sections of this Contract have been

inserted for convsnisnoe of reference only and are not intended to

summarize or otherwise des'^*^" bo ei'i ^-ix—w_o- ucs. wxie sucjec;. master or sucn sections

and shall not be given any consideration in the construction of

this Contract.

25



Section 13. Modification of Contract.

Contract may not iDS amended or modified excsDt by a

written amendment executed by the Mayor of City, who has been

authorized by City's City Council to execute such amendment, and

executed by an officer of Contractor who has been authorized by

Contractor's board or directors to execute such amendment.

Section 14. Entire Agreement

The terms and provisions contained in this Contract constitute

the entire agreement between City and Contractor and shall

supersede all previous communications, agreements and proposals

between City and Contractor with respect to the subject matter

hereof.

j.n witness whereof, City of Mountain Brook has caused this

Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, and Waste

Away Group, Inc. has caused this Contract to be executed by its

duly authorized corporate officer, all as of the day of 6^^
1998 .

A.ttest: City o/^ountain Brook

Its City Clerk ~~Its Mayor

Attest: Waste Away GrouD, Inc

3y 3v ().^

/its yhn/tV^ m,.



OT^jO'-OC ̂

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-046

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City
Council hereby awards the bid for landscape services [to be performed over a 36-month period] for the
Library ($6,422.16/year) and village and municipal complex ($25,695.96/ year) to Blackjack Horticulture,
Inc. having submitted the best bid.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama
that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract and such other documents
that may be determined necessary with respect to said landscape services.

ADOPTED: This I I th day of April, 2016.

Council President

APPROVED: This 11th day of April, 2016.

Mayor

CERTIFICATION

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at
its regular meeting held on April 11,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting.

City Clerk

Blackjack Horticulture, Inc. Landscape Service Bid Award 2016-046



LANDSCAPE BIDS

1. Turf Management Systems, LLC

Village/ Municipal Complex

Emmet O'Neal Library

$5,154.00 Monthly

1.184.00 Monthly

$5,338.00

2. Blackjack Horticulture, Inc.

Village/ Municipal Complex

Emmet O'Neal Library

$ 2,141.33 Monthly

535.18 Monthly

$2,575.51

3. Landscape Services, Inc.

Village/ Municipal Complex

Emmet O'Neal Library

$2,966.48 Monthly

680.60 Monthly

$3,647.08

4. Landscape Workshop

Village/ Municipal Complex

Emmet O'Neal Library

$7,853.08 Monthly

988.17 Monthly

$8,841.25



BID COVER SHEET

CITY OF MOLNTAIN BROOK

56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER)

B-20160210-005 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICE

Btd Request Posted this Date; March 14. 2016 Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: Aprils. 2QI<i @3;0fti).m.

To Whom It May Concern;

Bids slial) be sealed and deliveied to ilic Ofllce of the Purcliasing Agent in ihc City Hall, City orMoiiiiiain Brook.
Alabama, prior lo the above specified date and lime. Hids shall be publicly opened at the date and time spccilled above or as-
soon as practicable thereafter,

' by the City, a hid must comply wjih Alabama law. including, but not limited to. Ala. Code {I07p)
1-16-50 tv st-q. and 3I-I3-I el seq.. and provide documentation of cnrollmenl in the E-Vcrify program pursuant to Ala. Code

§31-13-9.

All bidders must use the bid fonn provided b\ the City for the project. I hi.s Rid Cover Sheet shnuid be completed and
submitted with the bid, Rids completed in pencil nill not be accepted. Rids sliould be clearly marked "SEAIJ-D BID" and
indicate on tlie outside of the envelope the project for u-hich the hid is submitted and tlio date of bid opening. .Mabama General
Coniraeior s Liccii.se number shall be clearly marked on the outside of the envelope.

for bids.

Ihc City reserves the right to require a bid bond, in wliicli ea.sc spceille information shall be provided with the request

fhc C ity re.serves the right to ulili/c life cxcle cost analysis in dcierinining the lowest rc.sponsiblc bidder, in which case
.specific infornialion shall be provided with the request for bids.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities.

TELEPHONE

' ̂  SC? l^W-loy iA i:ma 11. rtlpiba:^ .k loiy-f;cu. iWf
Al

Sain S. Gascon. City Manager and Purchasing Agent

BIDDER

ADDRESS

CITY

Village/Municipal Complex (Monthly)

Emmet O'Neal Library (Monthly)

BID TOTAL (PER SPBCfFlCATIONS)

SI'ATI

$

ZIP 3^(^10.

^■ 35,1S
11^, yeAr-iy

Note; MUNICH^ALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX

T/ifs bid must he sif^neij by bidder's principdl/ofpcer/iifjcnl and notarized:

Auth. Signaiitre:
Name: A>v4vg^.f>
1"hle: —VTce -

Sworn lo and subscribed before mc on this

Noti^rC-'Public
My Commission Expires: COMMISSION EXPIRES Al GUST 27. 20t7

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-2() 160210-005}
-3



NOTICE OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS TO ALL
CONTRACTORS OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA

("ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE CONTRACT")

As a Contractor, as defined in the Act, to THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, AUBAMA ("the City"), it is critical to your
relationshtp (future or continuing) with the City that you comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as
amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Accordingly,
please provide your Affidavit of Immigration Compliance with attached E-Verify Memorandum of Understanding, as requested'
in the attached memorandum. If you do not believe these obligations apply to you, please notify the City immediately.

Effective January 1, 2012, every contract entered into by the City a contractor will contain the following clause or one
substantially similar;

Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract: Contractor agrees that it will fully comply with the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-
Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it unlawful for an employer in
Alabama to knowingly hire pr continue to employ an alien who is or has become unauthorized with respect
to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the
eligibility to legally work in the United States for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State
of Alabama. Without limiting the foregoing. Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment,
or continue to employ an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is
personally familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll In the E-Verify Program
prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall remain enrolled
throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its affidavit the E-Verify
Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding and such other documentation
as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees
not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any other party with whom it has a contract, to employ
m the State of Alabama any Illegal or undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the
Project, and shall include In all of Its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If
Contractor receives actual knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of
Alabama, it will remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the
Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require each of its
subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. If Contractor
violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate termination by the City. To
the fullest extent permitted by law. Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from any
and all losses, consequential damages, expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits,
liabihttes, fines, penalties, and any other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to
fulfill its obligations contained in this paragraph.

To the extent that there is no formal written contract between the City and the Contractor (e.g., where business is
conducted by purchase order), this document shall serve as the Alabama Immigration Compliance Contract.

Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract Notice Acknowledged and Agreed by Contractor whose name
appears below:

Sctor Officer or Owner Signature/Date

Print Name/Title/Company VAo«.'nc-OU'Vi/|t€,

Please execute and return to THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA within the next 10 days.



AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE BY A
BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTORTO A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION

OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA
(To be completed as a condition for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any political subdivision thereof or
any state-funded entity to a business entity) '

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama

FORM FOR SECTIONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON-HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CITIZEN PROTECTION ACT-
CODE OF ALABAMA, SECTIONS 31-13-9 (a) and (b)

state of /Al^-ba^A-

County of

Before me, a notary public, personally appeared
being duly sworn, says as follows:

As a condition for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any political
subdivision thereof, or any state-funded entity to a business entity or employer that employs one or more
empires, I hereby attest that In my capacity asZE5E5LUfe6±nr (state position)

^  (/sic. (state business
entity/employer/contractor name) that said business entity/employer/contractor shall not knowingly
employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien.

I further attest that said business entity/employer/contractor is enrolled in the E-Verify program. (ATTACH A
COPY OF YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E-VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO DOCUMENT THAT THE
BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM.)

I further attest that ail sub-contractors in my employment are duly enrolled in the E-Verify program and upon
request can produce the appropriate forms verifying such action.

Signatdf^f Affiai^an Officer or Owner of Contractor)

—

E-Verify User Identification Number

Sworn to and subscribed before me this dav of TXi ̂nlA n \r( 20ia.

I certify that the affiant is known (or made known) to me to be the identical party he or she claims to be.

^lmdhn ^
Signature and Seal of Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

[Seal]
My Commission Expires 9-30-2013



EmpIoyerWizard Page 1 of 1

Employment Eflgipility yertfSlpn Weteomc

James Woiti

Utar 10

JWOR0781

w
Last Logtn

07:55 AM - 06/05/2013 Log Out

Home

My Cases

New Case

View Cases

Search Cases

My Profile

Edil Pfotile

Change Password

Change Security Questions

My Company

Edit Company Profile

Add New User

View Existing Users

Close Company Account

My Reports

View Reports

My Resources

View Essential Resources

Take Tutorial

View User Manual

Contact Us

Company Information

Company Name:

Company 10 Number:

Doing Business As (DBA)
Name:

DUNS Number:

Physical Location:

Address 1:

Address 2:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

County:

Blackjack Horticulture, Inc.

494351

View/Edit

5549 Derby Drive

Birmingham

AL

35210

JEFFERSON

Mailing Address:

Address 1:

Address 2:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

Additional Information:

Employer Identification Number: 200771840

Total Number of Employees: 20 to 99

Parent Organization;

Administrator:

Organization Designation:

Employer Category: None of these categories apply

NAICS Code; 238 . SPECIALTY TRADE CONTRACTORS View/Edit

Total Hiring Sites:

Total Points of Contact: 7

View/Edit

View/Edit

View MOU

Download View«rs

https://e-verify.uscis.gov/emp/'EmployerWizard.aspx 6/5/201-^



553S Di-rbyDrive
Birmingham. AL 35210

Tci 205 536 7523
Fax 205 536 7527

bJackjackhorticulture.com

April 4, 2016

City of Mountain Brook

Landscape Maintenance Bid
Bid Date: April 5, 2016

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter Is per the proposal requirements listed on page 4 of the bid packet. Per the
specifications and bid invitation dated March 14, 2016, 1 affirm that Blackjack
Horticulture satisfies all of the requirements specified under the section t itled
Minimum Qualifications for Landscape Contractors".

Thank you for the opportunity to bid.

Sincerely,

Andrew Bice

VIce-President



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made the day of April, 2016, by and between BLACKJACK
HORTICULTURE, INC. ("BLACKJACK") and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK,
ALABAMA ("the City").

WHEREAS, Blackjack has been determined by the City to be the lowest responsible
bidder in response to the City's invitation to bid for Landscape services, dated March 14, 2016;
and

WHEREAS, the City and Blackjack deem it desirable to formalize and memorialize the
terms and conditions of their contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement:

1. Blackjack shall provide landscape services to the City (including city hall, library
and commercial villages) in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of the
specifications made the basis of the City's invitation to bid and at the rate proposed by Blackjack
in the proposal submitted to the City in response thereto. The City's invitation to bid and the bid
specifications set forth therein, as well as Blackjack's bid proposed in response thereto
(Appendix 1), are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference.

2. This contract shall be terminable by the City for cause on ten days' written notice
to Blackjack, provided that Blackjack shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure or correct any
deficiency in performance that is the basis of a proposed termination for cause. Either party may
terminate the contract without cause on sixty days' notice to the nonterminating party.

ATTEST BLACKJACK HORTICULTURE, INC.

By: By:

Its: Its:

ATTEST THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK,
ALABAMA

By: By:

Its: Its:



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND

BLACKJACK HORTICULTURE, INC.
DATED APRIL 11, 2016

THIS ADDENDUM ("the/this Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Blackjack Horticulture, Inc. ("the Contractor") dated
April 11,2016.

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any
conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent
the conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b)
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment,
extension, or supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly acknowledged
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is authorized to waive,
modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council.

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings:

A. "The City refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its
constituent departments, boards, and agencies.

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation,
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the

Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor.

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors.

2. Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees,
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the
parties.

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs.

Page 1 of3



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor.

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges
pending resolution of the dispute.

5. Indemnification; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations ofLiability or Remedies. The
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge,
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void.

6. Choice of Law; Choice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of
law.

7. Construction of Addendum. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter
of law.

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the
foregoing. Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form
supplied by the Board and retum the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify

Page 2 of 3



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion.
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law. Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations
contained in this paragraph.

DATED this 11th day of April, 2016.

Blackjack Horticulture, Inc. City of Mountain Brook, Alabama

By : By :

Its: Its:

Page 3 of3



S'^OIlfO^V-DOS

'<i
o|
"TV

Vr'/
^

ir,iF=^-—-VI

^o
Oj,

 • / 9 4 a

Landscape Maintenance Requirements
And

Contract Specifications

2016

Contact:

Don Cafaro, Sr. Arborist
205-802-3874

dcafaro@mtnbrook.org



Table of Contents

Bid Cover Sheet 3

Summary 4

Site-Specific Required Service
List 5-6

Maintenance

Specifications 7-14

Minimum ^
Qualifications 15 g

Z

Form Contract 18 g
cu

Addendum 19-21

Immigration Act & Compliance Notice 22-23

W-9 24

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



BID COVER SHEET

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213

OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER)

B-20160210'005 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICE

Bid Request Posted this Date: March 14.2016 Bids to be Opened this Date and Time; />prii.S2016 <g}3;Q0p,mi

To Whom It May Concern:

Bids shali be sealed and dciivcrcd to the omcc of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hali. City
Aiabama. prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at the date and time specified above or as
soon as practicable thereaficr.

To be considered by the Citv. a bid must comply with Aiabama law. including, but not limited to. Aia. J-'oJe
§§41-16-50 et seq. and 31-13-1 et seq'. and provide documentation of enrollment in the E-Venfy program pursuant to Ala. Code
§31-13-9.

Ail bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the projwt. This Bid Cover ^
submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids should be clearly marked SE^ED BID md
indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is submitted and the date of bid opening. Alabama Genera
Contractor's License number shali be clearly marked on the outside of the envelope.

The City reserves the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be provided with the request
for bids.

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible bidder, in which case
specific information shali be provided with the request for bids.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or ail bids and to waive formalities.

a
o
z

CL
Qu

<

Sam S. Gaston, City Manager and Purchasing Agent

BIDDER

ADDRESS.

CITY

Village/Munictpal Complex (Monthly)

Emmet O'Neal Library (Monthly)

BID TOTAL (PER SPECIFICATIONS)

TELEPHONE.

EMAIL

STATE

$_

s

$_

Note; MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX

ZIP

This bid must be sienea below by oiaaer s pnncmuuujji*.cfr

Auth. Signature:

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this —
fiay of , 20 .

Name:
Title: Notary Public

My Commission Exnires:

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



SUMMARY

The City of Mountain Brook is seeking qualified bids for landscape maintenance operations. These
operations are carried out in three general service areas within the city: Villages (Crestline/Mountain
Brook/English), Municipal Complex, and Emmet O'Neal Library. Also note that the area within and
surrounding the courtyard at the comer of the library—^adjacent to the intersection of Keeley Ct and Oak
St—^will not be part of the maintenance agreement. Estimations of maintenance costs fur the courtyard
area should not be included in a proposal. Operations related to the Library Service Area, following
acceptance of the agreement, shall be invoic^ separately with the corresponding monthly charge. On or
by a specified date (TBD), the service provider will submit two separate invoices reflecting the Village
and Municipal Complex Service Areas, and the E.O. Library Service Area, respectively. Requirements
are categorized by the types of maintenance tasks associated with particular site features/attributes (e.g.
turf, beds, clean up, etc). For the sake of uniformity, simplicity, and comparison, services are expressed
(and should be quoted) as a number of site visits or installments. Bids shall reflect the total annual cost of
all maintenance operations necessary to fulfill the stated requirements. The duration of the contract will ^
be 36 months from date of acceptance. ^

Q
All proposals shall include: Z,

1. A signed document from an authorized representative of the company, affirming that it g
satisfies all the requirements specified under the section titled '^Minimum Qualifications for ^
I.andscape Contractors''

2. Total annual cost of all maintenance for the Villages and Municipal Complex together (listing
relative amounts for each); provide same for Emmet O'Neal Library separately.

3. A calendar or timeline, showing projection of services and treatments to be applied
throughout the year (categorized similar to charges above).

Reporting and Quality Assurance

Within five business days after each site visit, the contractor shall submit to the City Arborist a Site Visit
Report containing two separate electronic files, via email, with the following information:

Filetfl: Site Visit RenortfSVRi

Date and location of visit

Tasks completed
A list of all materials, products, and man-hours used to complete designated tasks
Notes, problems encountered, observations

File #2: Chemical Application Summary fCASi
Date and location

Weather and site conditions

Purpose of application
Trade name(s), formulation, % active ingredient(s)
Rates and total amounts

Notes, problems encountered, observations

These requirements allow coordination of maintenance operations with and between contractor(s) and city
personnel, ensure proper execution of the contract, and maintain accurate records for the purpose of
regulatory compliance. As stated above, a record of any and all treatments (to include the use of any
chemical that requires an MSDS) shall be kept by contractor and included as a supplement to the Site
Visit Report. This documentation, in addition to being required by law, permits a meaningful evaluation
of services and treatments over time, particularly in terms of their effectiveness. Just as important, it is

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



intended to result in the most targeted, responsible use of chemicals by avoiding over- or under-
application of treatments to accomplish a given objective.

Schedule; Contract Modifications

All locations generally require a weekly site visit. Ongoing communications between both parties should
determine the mo.st appropriate timing of installments. Schedules and tasks are subject to change, based
on a number of factors. The specifications in this document attempt to address all foreseen maintenance
needs. However, requirements and priorities can shifi or evolve over time—especially in commercial
areas—^as a result of future changes to landscape features and attributes, regulations, weather,
construction, etc. Crews are expected to adapt to such changes by identifying, correcting, and/or reporting
items that require attention. Service needs within or related to the areas listed in the initial agreement,
which are beyond the scope of the agreement, may be subject to a bid process. The city will make eveiy
effort to notify the contractor of actions likely to result in changes in the scope of and/or requirements set
forth in the initial agreement.

GENERAL:

SITE-SPECIFIC REQUIRED SERVICE LIST

X

5
z

A. All Villages/Municipal Complex/Library: ^
1. All locations, sites, and areas represented under this agreement require a weekly ^

site visit for general monitoring and identification of specific items needing
attention, in addition to other tasks outlined herein.

2. During each site visit; litter and debris removal, to include woody debris and
other plant matter.

3. Spot-spraying and/or hand weeding in all shrub beds and paver areas, and along
sidewalks, curbs, and storefronts.

B  Winter Cleanup:
1. (8) Site Visits to all locations between October and January of the following year,

or approximately every two weeks.
2. Remove from site all leaves and incidental litter.

3. Loads of leaves brought to a processing center for composting, that are
inter-mixed with pieces of woody debris larger than one-half inch in diameter
will be reiected.

TURF & IRRIGATION:

A. Mountain Brook Village/Municipal Complex/Libraiy:
1. 36 Site Visits (weekly throughout growing season): mow, edge, hand weed, trim,

and remove debris; replace dead sections of sod as needed.
2. Fall and spring fertilizer application.
3. Pre-emergent weed control (2-3 applications per year depending on product used,

and site conditions).
4. Post-emergent weed control, pesticide, and fungicide applications (as needed).
5. Periodic thatch removal (as needed).
6. Annual core aeration.

B. Mountain Brook Village/Municipal Complex/Library:
1. Maintain existing or newly-installed irrigation systems, and all related

components, in proper working order.
2. Systematically monitor all system controls, components, and adjustments;

promptly report all associated problems.

5

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



3. Identify and/or correct electrical faults, leaks, breakages, or any other problems
preventing the delivery of a sufficient volume of water to targeted vegetation.

MULCH:

A. All Villages/Municipal Complex/Library:
1. Remove and replace, wherever present all existing mulch twice per year.
2. Maintain pine straw and/or mulch with a neat edge and uniform thickness.

3. Add, remove, or adjust mulch or pine straw routinely between complete
replacement(s).

4. Prevent excessive buildup of mulch that encourages the growth of fibrous roots
above grade.

SHRUB BEDS:

Municipal Complex/Library:
1. Fall and spring fertilizer application.
2. Pre-emergent weed control (2-3 applications per year depending on product and

site conditions). Z
3. Post-emergent weed control and hand-weeding where necessaiy.
4. Other pesticide/fungicidc/plant health care treatments as needed. ^

Q

ANNUAL BEDS:

A. Municipal Complex/Crestline School Entrance (Church St):
1. Twice per year: annual bed and decorative flower container preparation, planting,

and establishment at Municipal Complex.
2. Ongoing maintenance of annual plantings to include the appropriate liquid

formulation of fertilizer, insecticide, and fungicide; hand weed, water, and dead
head as needed; replacement of dead plants.

3. Submit plans/designs for annual plantings to city, prior to installation.

TREES:

ISee MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS: Sec. 3.4.C.|

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS

1.0 GENERAL

1.1 DESCRIPTION:

A. Scope: ^
1. Provide all labor, products, equipment and services necessary to maintain site g

landscape work for a period of thirty-six months. 2
2. Maintain all landscape vegetation and irrigation systems as described herein.

Oh

1.2 SUBMITTALS: ^

A. Qualification data for firms specified in "Quality Assurance" article to demonstrate their
capabilities and experience. Include a list of a minimum of five similar projects
completed within the last five years with project name, address, names of Architects and
Owners, overall description of scope of work, and contract value.

B. Product Data:

1. Submit manufacturer's product literature, instructions, diagrams, specimen labels
and MSDS, and other pertinent information.

C. Maintenance Manual:

I  In a binder, include reasonably accurate schedule, seasonal calendar, and list of
procedures for landscape maintenance program, which represents one full cycle
within the contract period. Submittal should be made before or close to the
beginning of the contract period.

1.3 JOB CONDITIONS:

A. Coordinate the Work of this Section with that of other trades.

B. Examine conditions under which Work is to be performed and notify Owner in writing of
unsatisfactory conditions. Do not perform Work until conditions are satisfactory and
acceptable.

C. Maintain stakes set by others until removal is mutually agreed upon by all parties.

D. Determine the extent and location of all underground utilities and fixtures, prior to or
during excavation of any kind. Take appropriate measures to locate lines by contacting
the "One Call" service, and by careliil excavation at the site, when work is done.

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20I602I0-005)



Q
Z

E. Employ materials and designs that attempt to minimize future conflicts between utilities
and landscape/hardscape installations and maintenance operations.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCt;

A. Codes and Standards:
1. All plant materials to comply with Slate and Federal laws relating to inspection

for disease and insect control.

2. Plant material quality to conform to American Standard for Nursery Stock,
American Association of Nurserymen, Inc., latest edition, ANSI Z-60.I.

3. Plant Material nomenclature to conform to:
a. Hortus Third, a Concise Dictionary of Plants Cultivated in the United

Slates and Canada, MacMillan Publishing Company, Inc., New York,
latest edition.

b. Names not listed in the above standard to comply with those most
commonly used in the trade.

c. In all cases, botanical names take precedence over common names.

4. Applicable Sections of the Alabama Highway Department (AHD) Standard g
Specification for Highway Construction, latest edition. ^

B. Contractor Qualifications: Firm experienced in the successful landscape maintenance in
the local geographic area. Firm shall have sufficient manpower, equipment and financial
resources to complete the Work of this Section. As evidence of this experience. Firm
shall provide a list with a minimum of five completed [or ongoing] landscape
maintenance contracts in the Birmingham/Central Alabama region with minimum
contract duration of 24 consecutive months within the past five years, and contact
Information for each example. Examples must be similar to this project in these areas:

1. Scope of maintenance services provided
2. Extent of area(s) and features maintained
3. Contract value

C. Supervision: .
1. Scheduling, operations, installation, and maintenance shall be supervisee oy a

person(s) having one or more of the following qualifications:
\ four-year degree in a related field, from an accredited institution.

b. Is a Certified/Licensed Horticulturist and/or Landscape Professional.
c. Has a State Setting of Landscape Plants License,
d. Has a State Commercial Pesticide Applicator's License.

D. Inspection and Approval: . . • *1.
1. All plant material is subject to inspection and approval by the Owner in tne tieia

prior to digging, in the nursery in containers, before planting and installation, or
any time during the installation and completion of this phase of work

2. Immediately remove from site plant materials or other materials not complying
with specified requirements

3. Approval is for visual qualities only and does not relieve the Contractor ot his
obligation to provide materials and workmanship in full compliance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents

1.5 PRODUCT DELIVERY. STORAGE AND HANDLING:
8

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



a

A. Deliver packaged materials in manufacturer's original containers showing weight,
analysis and name of manufacturer. Protect materials from deterioration during delivery,
and while stored at the site.

B. Deliver all non-packaged or non-containerized materials to site in a manner that will
prevent loss, damage, deterioration or contamination.

C. Store all materials in approved locations to prevent loss, damage, deterioration or
contamination.

D. Delivery, storage and handling of all plant materials shall conform to AHD Specification
Section 860.06(c) and the following:
1. Deliver freshly dug plants, which have not been in cold storage or heeled-in.
2. Do not prune prior to delivery.
3. Do not bend or bind trees or shrubs in such a manner as to damage bark, break

branches or destroy natural shape.
4. Provide protective covering during delivery.
5. Deliver plants after preparations for planting have been completed and approved, q

and plant immediately. 2
1.6 SITE MAINTENANCE: S

A. Keep roads, paving and structures adjacent to maintenance operations clean and free of
obstructions, mud and debris at all times.

B. Do not permit flushing of roads or disposal of dirt or debris into sewers or drainage
ditches.

C. Control dust from maintenance operations.

2.0 PRODUCTS

2.1 WATER

A. Owner provides potable water

B. Contractor provides necessary hose, attachments and accessories.

2.2 SOIL AMENDMENTS:

A. Fertilizer:

1. Applied prescriptively, per soil test report recommendations
2. Commercially available, in appropriate form and formulation for situation

B. Lime

1. Applied per soil test report recommendations
2. Ground or crushed agricultural lime
3. Containing not less than 85% of total carbonates
4. Commercially available

C. Decomposed Organic Matter:
1. Well rotted leaf compost and/or manure
2. Containing no weeds, grasses or plants, their seeds, or any substance harmftil to

plant growth

9

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



3. Uniform composition

D. Tilled and incorporated into native soil to achieve a homogenous consistency and texture
across an area representing the projected extent of root growth achieved at such time as all
companion vegetation would be considered fully established

2.3 MULCH:

A. 100% pine bark nuggets, mini-nuggets, or pine straw
I. Free from wood, cambium, sawdust, leaves, twigs, insects, grasses or weeds,

their seeds, other foreign material, and/or any substance harmful to plant growth.

2.4 PLANT MATERIALS:

A. Solid Sod:

1. Obtained from local sources with growing conditions similar to area to be planted
2. Type as shown and scheduled
3. Containing no more than 5% other grasses ^
4. Well cultivated and free from weeds, disease, insects, extraneous roots, stones g

and other foreign material; of good texture 'z,
5. Containing no sedge grasses, annual bluegrass, or crabgrass. ^

On

B. Plant material:

1. Provide and install species, sizes and quantities shown and scheduled; standard
quality, first-class representatives of each species or variety, true to name and
type; nursery-grown, unless otherwise shown or scheduled.

2. Conforming to standards in American Standard for Nursery Stock.
3. Having normal, well-developed branches and vigorous root systems.
4. Complying with State and federal laws for disease and insect infestation.
5. Healthy, vigorous, free from defects, decay, disfigurements, sunscald injuries,

abrasions of the baric, plant diseases, insect pests or eggs, borers, and all forms of
infestations or objectionable disfigurements.

6. Reject plants lacking compactness or proper proportions, plants which are weak,
thin or injured from high density planting or staging in nursery.

7. Plants which have been cut back from larger grades to meet certain specified
requirements will be rejected.

8. Plants with undersized, dry, cracked, or broken root balls, or which arc loose in
their baskets or containers, will be rejected.

9. Balled in burlap (B&B): and/or field-grown version of a given selection if
available: Root-pruned per industry specifications for species; marked at source
and placed in planting site with the same directional orientation as it was at
source location.

10. Container-grown material:
a. Expose roots of plants in containers 5 gallon (#7) or larger in size to

identify and correct root defects with bypass pruners or handsaw.
b. Expose roots as above, or use bypass style pruners of sufficient size to

correct root defects in plants smaller than S gallon (#S)
11. Size:

a. In accordance with American Standard for Nursery Stock.
b. Measure plants before pruning, with branches in normal position.
c. All replacement material shall match the size attained by original

materials at the time of replacement.

10

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



d. Height and spread dimensions: General body mass of plant, not from
branch tip to tip.

e. Well-proportioned as to height: reject plants which meet specified
measurements but do not possess an overall balance.

f. Take calipcr measurement on trunk 6 inches above natural ground level
up to and including 4-inch caliper size; 12 inches above natural ground
level for larger sizes.

g. Balled in burlap plants shall have firm, natural root balls of a diameter
and depth not less than per American Standard for Nursery Stock.

2.5 CHEMICAL WEED CONTROL:

A. Pre-Emergent (in turf areas):
1. Selective pre-emergent containing the appropriate A.I. and mode of action, given

proper identification of target species, and other factors influenced by site
conditions.

2. Commercially available.
3. Adhere to manufacturer's recommendations for strength, rate and method of ^

application, and terms of contract related to record-keeping and reporting. g

B. Pre-Emergent (in bed areas): ^
1. Selective pre-emergent containing the appropriate A.L and mode of action, given ^

proper identification of target species, and other factors influenced by site
conditions.

2. Commercially available.
3. Adhere to manufacturer's recommendations for strength, rate, and method of

application, and terms of contract related to record-keeping and reporting.

C. Post-Emergent:

1. Selective or non-selective post-emergent containing the appropriate A.I. and
mode of action, given proper identification of target species, and other factors
influenced by site conditions.

2. Commercially available.
3. Adhere to manufacturer's recommendations for strength, rate and method of

application, and terms of contract related to record-keeping and reporting.

D. Herbicide:

1. Non-selective post-emergent with no residual soil activity.
2. Commercially available.
3. Adhere to manufacturer's recommendations for strength, rate and method of

application.

2.6 GUYING AND STAKING:

A. Tree selection and planting techniques should minimize the need for staking and guying.

B. When deemed necessary, and after consulting with the Owner; acceptable methods of
staking/guying
do not include any type of material coming into contact with the tree itself, which could
abrade, cut, girdle, or otherwise damage the stem (e.g. wire, twine, eable).

11

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



Any plant material requiring support shall be evaluated at the beginning of its second
growing season, and support removed if sufficient establishment has occurred.

3.0 EXECUTION

3.1 GENERAL:

Provide maintenance according to:
Guideline performance specifications herein.
Site-Specific Required Service List herein.
All related ANSI Standards, and other accepted cultural practices/techniques.
Manufacturer's recommendations for material use.

Applicable State laws and local ordinances.

3.2 WATERING:

A. General Watering:
1. Water during early morning hours. ^
2. Use appropriate volume and pressure to ensure water percolates to a depth g

consistent with the root ball height for given species, size, and on-site soil z
conditions (deep watering). ^

3. Maintain uniform moisture in all designated planting areas during winter. ^
especially when a freeze is expected.

B. Trees:

1. Achieve deep watering of all designated trees until fully established, using a
suitable high volume-low pressure method.

2. Monitor soil conditions, tree appearance, signs and symptoms of water-related
problems, adjust schedule accordingly, and/or take other permanent
corrective measures.

3. Where water bags are deployed, deep watering shall directly precede the filling
of bags.

C. Shrubs:

I. Water shrubs as necessary to maintain sufficient uniform moisture in bed.

D. Maintain Owner's irrigation system(s) in good repair during maintenance period.
Operation, management and maintenance of irrigation system are incidental to the Work
of this Contract.

3.3 INSECT AND DISEASE CONTROL:

A. Maintain all turf in a pest and disease-free condition by approved means.

B. Obser%'e all applicable laws, statues, and ordinances regulating the purchase, use,
application and licensing for all pesticides; include application records in Site Visit
Reports.

C. Where possible, combine approved insecticide and fungicide to provide maximum
protection for all turf

D. Follow manufacturer's recommendations and observe all safety precautions.

12

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



E. Apply appropriate preventive pest/disease control to plants during establishment period,
to the extent that certain common problems are known to exist with particular species
selections. Generally avoid the increased possibility of such complications with proper
site/species selection.

F. Observe and note presence of any pests and/or diseases on trees and shrubs adjacent to work
area, and include in Site Visit Report to Owner.

3.4 PRUNING

A. General Pruning:
1. All pruning implements routinely sanitized to avoid/prevent transmission and

spread of various landscape related pests and pathogens.
2. Adherence to all parts of ANSI Standards A300 and Z133, latest edition.
3. Practice sanitation by removing from the site, any and all debris

produced by pruning operations.

B. Shrubs: C
1. Appropriate type and method of pruning, as determined by plant's growth form g

and habit, timing and location of bloom/bud-set, intended aesthetic 2:
function, applicable industry guidelines and/or standards, and other conditions ^
related to plant health. ^

2. Provide notification to Owner, prior to conducting large-scale or otherwise
significant pruning operations for purposes beyond general maintenance and
cleaning

C. Trees:

1. Prune Trees onlv at specific direction or request of Owner.
2. No tree pruning to occur prior to an on-site meeting with the City Arborist, to

include a Supervisor and any person(s) potentially directed to perform any
portion of the tree pruning.

3. Strict adherence to all related ANSI Standards and Owner's stated objectives.

D. Annuals/Perennials:

1. Routinely and promptly remove dead plants, and any dead, broken, or diseased
plant portions.

2. Routinely dead-head plants for fresh appearance and to enhance frequency and
number of blooms.

3.5 WEEDING:

A. Minimum weeding:
1. One day per week hand weed in designated areas during the period from March I

through September 30; remove visible weeds.
2. Weed to remove visible weeds during the winter.
3. Follow required service list for minimum pre-emergent, post-emergent and

chemical contact spray applications.
3.6 SOD MAINTENANCE:

A. Mowing:
1. Mow, edge, trim, and clean lawn areas throughout growing season;

approximately 4/11—11/15 (or year-round if over-seeded with cool season
grass).

2. Remove grass clippings from the site.

13

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



B.

<

3. Maintain turf on a weekly basis, as specified, per the required service list.

B. Thatch Removal: . , a rh««Ar
1. Removal thatch as needed: determined by annual evaluation and report to Owner.
2. Remove thatch generally during early spring or mid-falI.
3. De-thatch using approved equipment for this purpose.

C. Aeratmg^^^^^^ aeration of all established turf areas once each year during mid-
spring or late summer. . « ..

2. Use approved aeration equipment, manufactured especially for this specific
purpose.

3.7 MULCHING:

A. Keep planting areas neat and uniformly mulched at a depth of three inches on a continual
basis, unless otherwise noted. ^

Prevent excessive build up of mulch, such that causes fibrous root development within |
the top organic layer of the soil profile, by completely removing and reinstalling mulch or ^
pine straw in all designated areas. Pu,

c  Remove and replace loose mulch and pine straw twice each year, generally in the spring
and fall; redistribute, even out, or add to mulch or pine straw throughout the year, in
conjunction with weekly site visits, to maintain consistent depth and neat appearance.

3.8 STRAIGHTENING:

A. In designated areas, maintain plants in their stable upright position and at the proper
grade by straightening and lightening staking and guying apparatus, raising plants which
have settled, and by other means.

3.9 CLEAN-UP:

A. Keep all planting areas neat and uniformly mulched on a continuous basis.

B. Clean up adjacent walks and pavement where littered as a result of maintenance
operations.

C. Remove trash and debris from surface of planting areas, whether as a result of
maintenance operations or otherwise.

3.10 SITE VISIT REPORTING:

A  Following a site visit to perfoim any task under the Requir^ Service List, «he ContiTOtor
is responsible for submitting a report to the Owner within five business days, to include
the following information:
1. Location, date, and time of visit

3. Dwumentationof products used to complete task, with corresponding rates and total
4!"^te observations and problems with adjacent landscape and hardscape features

3.11 ACCEPTANCE:
14

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



<

A. Basis of Acceptance:
1. Contractor Is responsible for landscape maintenance work as specified herein and

in keeping with acceptable horticultural practices.
2. During the period of the maintenance contract, replace with no additional

compensation, and as soon as weather permits, all dead or diseased turf and/or
annuals, and all turf or annuals not in a thriving condition; replace all other
workmanship and materials which are unsatisfactory in the opinion of the Owner;
make good any other damage, loss, destruction or failure to flourish sufficiently
as the result of inferior or defective materials or workmanship, including, but not
limited to, inadequate drainage.

3. All replacement material shall match the appearance of original material at the
time of replacement.

4. Remove dead or dying material from the site within one week of notice from the
Owner.

5. Repair grades and other work necessitated due to planting replacements.
6. If the replacement is not acceptable during or at the end of the maintenance

period, the Owner may elect either subsequent replacement or credit. ^
7. Responsibi lity for replacement or repair work applies to losses or damage other g

than those due to vandalism. Owner neglect, or Acts of Nature, as determined by 2;
the Owner. ActsofNatureinclude, but may not be limited to, high winds of g
hurricane or tornado force, sleet, hail, freezing rain, and extreme cold (as &
determined by the Owner). Contractor agrees to replace losses due to Acts of
Nature at fifteen percent (15%) less than original contract price for the damaged
work.

8. The cost of mobilization (including the provisions of General Requirements and
General and Supplementary Conditions) as specified herein is considered
incidental to the Work and will not be counted as a separate item for payment.

3.12 FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

A. At the end of the maintenance period, submit request for inspection for Final Acceptance
to the Owner at least one week prior to anticipated date of inspection.

B. Upon request for inspection, jointly review with Owner all Work for Final Acceptance.

C. Replace mulch to specified thickness.

D. Remove tree staking apparatus and saucers from all trees, unless otherwise directed.
Replace mulch to specified thickness.

E. Submit Maintenance Manual (3 copies) for Owner's information and Owner's approval,
containing full details for care and maintenance of landscape work, personnel and
procedures, and weekly schedule for maintenance.

F. Upon completion by the Contractor of all required repairs and replacements, the Owner
will confirm the date of Final Acceptance of the Work.

15

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



Minimum Qualifications for Landscape Contractors

City of Mountain Brook

1. Alabama General Contractor's License for Special Construction (HS-S), with sub classification
"Landscaping", with a minimum bid limit of A - SI 00.000.00; hold a Professional Service Permit
from AL Dept. of Agriculture. ^

X
2. Bidder must cany the following types of insurance with minimum coverage limits as specified g

below: Z

A. Worker's Compensation; as required by law &
B. Employer's Liability: $500,000 each occurrence ^
C. Bodily Injury, except auto; $500,000 each occurrence
D. Property Damage, except auto; $500,000 each occurrence
E. Excess Umbrel la; $ 1,000,000 each occurrence

Bidder must furnish the city with (a satisfactory] certificate of insurance specifically naming the City
of Mountain Brook and Emmet O'Neal Library as additional insured's. During the term of this
contract, the contractor shall furnish the City evidence of the renewal of all insurance policies at least
thirty (30) days prior to their expiration.

3. 5 years experience in commercial or institutional landscape installation projects operating as the same
company.

4. A minimum of 5 projects completed or ongoing in the last 5 years 2007-2012 (show corresponding
values over the life of the contract) with work including the following:

A. Landscape installation work
B. Landscape maintenance work
C. M inimum contract duration period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months

5. Contractor must employ two or more hands-on field supervisors with at least one of the following
qualifications:

A. Is certified by the Alabama Nurserymen's Association
B. Holds a Bachelor's degree in Horticulture or related field from an accredited college or

university
C. Has a State Setting of Landscape Plants License.
D. Holds a Commercial Applicator permit in the category of Ornamental and Turf Pest

Control from the Alabama Department of Agriculture and Industries.

Additionally, provide the following information:

I. List any construction projects performed for the City of Mountain Brook during the last five (5)
years, 2007-2012; include the project name, contract amount, completion date, and percentage of

16

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. 3-20160210-005)



work performed with contractor's own forces. List all projects and/or maintenance contracts in
which your firm is presently involved.

2. List and provide brief explanation, including the resolution, of any disputes or conflicts with the
City of Mountain Brook for any previous projects.

3. List lawsuits your firm has filed, or has had filed against it within the last 10 years witli regard to
projects listed above: include details. List any lawsuits in which your firm is presently involved,
either as a plaintiff or as a defendant. The City of Mountain Brook reserves the right to require a
detailed explanation of all such lawsuits.

4. Is your firm or any member of the firm barred from doing work for any local, state, or the federal
government?

5. List and document key personnel and their experience: include certification or license numbers as
applicable. List must include at least one degreed horticulturalist (or closely related profession)
and one person with a current commercial applicators license.

6. Letter from a Surety Company stating your firm's bonding capacity. ^

7. Other pertinent documentation to substantiate your firm's competence and financial ^
responsibility, including a copy of your firm's most recent audited and unaudited financial
statements. <

17

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



FORM CONTRACT

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made the day of ApriK 2016» by and between
("CONTRACTOR") and THE CITY OF

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("the City").

WHEREAS, Contractor has been determined by the City to be the lowest responsible
bidder in response to the City's invitation to bid for Landscape services, dated March 14,2016;
and

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor deem it desirable to formalisse and memorialize the
terms and conditions of their contract: ^

NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement: ®

1. Contractor shall provide landscape services to the City (including city hall, library ^
and commercial villages) in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of the
specifications made the basis of the City's invitation to bid and at the rate proposed by
Contractor in the proposal submitted to the City in response thereto. The City's invitation to bid
and the bid specifications set forth therein, as well as Contractor's bid proposed in response
thereto (Appendix 1), are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference.

2. This contract shall be terminable by the City for cause on ten days' written notice
to Contractor, provided that Contractor shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure or correct any
deficiency in performance that is the basis of a proposed termination for cause. Either party may
terminate the contract without cause on sixty days' notice to the nonterminating party.

ATTEST CONTRACTOR

By: By:

Its: Its:

attest the city of MOUNTAIN BROOK,
ALABAMA

By: By:_

Its: lts:_

18

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND

DATED ,2016

THIS ADDENDUM C*the/this Addendum*') to the principal agreement between the City of
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and ("the Contractor")
dated 2016.

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any
conflicting or inconsbtent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent
the conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b)
reduce* restrict, or eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment,
extension, or supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly acknowledged
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is authorized to waive, ^
modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without g
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council.

1. Definitions* For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: tu

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook. Alabama, and its
constituent departments, boards, and agencies.

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation,
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor.

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the CiQ^ with or without
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors.

2. Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution, The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (I) the rights and remedies available under
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees,
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly be^veen the
parties.

i. Attorney *s Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses, The City shall not be liable for attorney's
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs,
and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor.

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City

19

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges
pending resolution of the dispute.

5. IttdemniJIcation; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations of Liability or Remedies. The
City shall not and does not indemniiy. hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge,
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof: nor shall or does the City waive its
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting
on Contractor's tehalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void.

6. Choice ofLaw; Choice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or ^
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent ^
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or ^
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty ^
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be ^
Jefferson County. Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of
law.

7. Construction of Addendum, Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter
of law.

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. as amended by the Immigration Act of
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9
requirements or fails to use R-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the States
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the
foregoing. Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify
Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall ̂
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require

20

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion.
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law. Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations
contained in this paragraph.

DATED this day of 2016.

Contractor City of Mountain Brook, Alabama

By : By:

Its; Its

a
o
z
bH
CU
Dm

<

21

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



X

S

NOTICE OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS TO ALL
CONTRACTORS OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK. ALABAMA ("ALABAMA
IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE CONTRACT') As a Contractor, as defined in the Act. to
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK. ALABAMA ("the City"), it is critical to your
relationship (future or continuing) with the City that you comply with the Immigration Reform
and Control Act of 1986. as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the
Beason - Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Accordingly, please provide
your Affidavit of Immigration Compliance with attached E - Verify Memorandum of
Understanding, as requested in the attached memorandum. If you do not believe these
obligations apply to you, please notify the City immediately. Effective January 1.2012, every
contract entered into by the City a contractor will contain the following clause or one
substantially similar: Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract: Contractor agrees that it
will fully comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the
Immigration Act of 1990. and the Beason - Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection
Act. which makes it unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to ^
employ an alien who is or has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to 2
comply with the 1 - 9 requirements or fails to use E - Verify to verify the eligibility to legally S
work in the United States for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of ^
Alabama. Without limiting the foregoing. Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for
employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other
managerial employee who is personally familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute
an affidavit to this effect on the form supplied by the Board and return the same to the City.
Contractor shall also enroll in the E - Verify Program prior to performing any work, or
continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall remain enrolled throughout the e'ntirc course
of its performance hcrcunder, and shall attach to its affidavit the E - Verify Program for
Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding and such other documentation as
the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the E - Verify Program. Contractor
agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any other party with whom it has a
contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or undocumented aliens to perform any
work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all of its contracts a provision
substantially similar to thi.s paragraph. If Contractor receives actual knowledge of the
unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will remove that
employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the Immigration
Reform and Control Act of 1986. as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990. and the
Beason - Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require each
of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. If
Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law. Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations
contained in this paragraph. To the extent that there is no formal written contract between the
City and the Contractor (e.g.. where business is conducted by purchase order), this document
shall serve as the Alabama Immigration Compliance Contract. Alabama Immigration Law
Compliance Contract Notice Acknowledged and Agreed by Contractor whose name appears
below: Contractor Officer or
Owner Signature/Date _ Print

22

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



Name/Title/Company Please execute and return to THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK,
ALABAMA within ̂ e next 10 days.

AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE BY A

SUBCONTRACTOR TO A POLITCIAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA
(To be completed as a condition for the award of any [subjcontract, grant, or incentive by the
State of Alabama, any political subdivision thereof, or any state - flmded entity to a business
entity. TO BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR OR GRANTEE OF THE CITY OF
MOUNTAIN BROOK. ALABAMA) City of Mountain Brook, Alabama FORM FOR

SECTIONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON - HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CITIZEN
PROTECTION ACT; CODE OF ALABAMA, SECTIONS 31 - 13 - 9 (a) and (b) Stale of

County of
Before me, a notary public, personally

appeared (print name) who, being duly sworn, says
as follows: As a condition for the award of any [sub]contract, [subjgrant, or incentive by the
State of Alabama, any political subdivision thereof, or any state ~ funded entity to a business
entity or employer that employs one or more employees, I hereby attest that in my capacity ^

as (state position) for 2
(state business Z

entity/employer/contractor name) that said business entity/employer/[sub]contractor shall not a.
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien. 1 ^
further attest that said business entity/employer/contractor is enrolled in the E - Verify

program. (ATTACH A COPY OF YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E - VERIFY
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO DOCUMENT THAT THE BUSINESS
EN'n rY/EMPLOYER/[SUB]CONTRACTOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E - VERIFY

PROGRAM.) 1 further attest that all sub - contractors in my employment are duly enrolled in
the E - Verify program and upon request can produce the appropriate forms verifying such

action. Signature of Affiant (an
Officer or Owner of [SubJContractor)
E - Verify User Identification Number Sworn to and subscribed before me this ^day of

, 2 . I certify that the affiant is known (or made known) to
me to be the identical party he or she claims to be.

Signature and Seal of Notary Public My
Commission Expires: [Seal]

23

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20160210-005)



.0,- W-9
Rw. IxR.iart nir

1 t.vj,

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

C<v* form 10 tht

Oo net
Mnd to Uw (RS

vtesV tCkttUM^U TkMnCira«*10i I j ̂Ktmrthe CJ OOw »
rn.mhn If— »vl <r< '» u^r K'I

•I>t> •riiWi.RlR

' Cimsi fan
> WlNuJa^

> nwnt tm tean* opioflrt

City of Mountain Brook
P. O. Bok 130009

Mountain Brook, AL ]$S1M009

■JBll Taapayer Identiricatkrn Numbor fTIMl

>
-8
'V
W
z
o

X

I ni.>» jo-r I V ir 1V .vr'.-yu^iX' rw. i <v fvownmli, .tin n »>.* varai wusy nimoM fSSW
Ho««w. lor , fOiMMxr aiwrw VM ffopimat. or AuofinM•»«»>. m«M P«ii omrueoom •»
poiW t. to" 'J'N« wni^r-R < .. yij,» (T-iBiyw <a.tt(nt»:.ori fv,n&wawi IT Hh. do na r*,* «
■wt* Ho* to 9*1 • IIM on uitf, !
|»oi». li:<v dUvu-,i «. « MC.P i*.., MU I1« y.n*t 0-age 2 hy iv> woosr nw-oo

Soei*l uetnoj

I tr"**®** MMfUokM RMMtor'
M ; I I I ■ I

ConrticAtion ~
l>.«M iM..»rir. u' t«/.Pr •' r""."! Iiirf '
1 Tppi>jT*»n ^-ifwn (VI liinlrrnr. tnm*:! laiaryei KMfurujtMjft rwmsw .« I »r sMKvig Inr a rjjntmr intir nuxw tonwi and
' !?fID I .m fOToi ftaw tMcnrp «imlici(iro o< fbf i horf not aoin nsiAad M iN- aa«inii Hcrrojp ̂•^1' !»"<> I »n in av*up 'MWioMng it ■ >iufl of s faiuia m nifon <w at arvrorvt^ (W M me IPS n«y

nnWvis mr t^v 1,1.^ nn nrfiit •,4tafil lo tMcliup'Mtttnottirfl. kW
) I jn a I, b oKsiri •> i. b irndrm *i«ii
C^diMiion KHtncsont vn. rijm .- •ois rx.i nan 2 anow .1 jo, rwna »(n rvxrieo Oy tiw iRS maj yeoaie ciriwij soOjKi u taoiur.
«t^i9 UtCouS.. yiH. tuv« !4I«110 •nwrt al <Kam and Oir>S(ndt wi jW llr lAjtn. for >aal aUMe Usmadnm «r«J rlam net aper, fnr (W.yMjr MracM P»MI »i|uir.<j|i ,m aaoi*»tvrrfT« uT t«.uicd fof^nj. lantctoOon rf del*. cottrexJjnm U an Ti*wdu* trtrprrvm
nwitrrmr IIRni. anj ytneiiily loyrientb Mv inoi rtrtmt jny avicltrwi joo are rtoi iraurcO to wi it« CrI^cbUxi tu joj Phul
fiup-w >*xj li»ir;i nit Sett itie iiftiijt'lins tn |.B« ?i
Stan
Hem

S«9Pijtim of
U.S. pardon i

Purpose Of Form
A fcrt'Ajr At« IS 'rourrc Ic inc jp iVcr"fsi*,R-
irtir'i Atfr, i-p, ;P5 nani yn^ frr's*'
imrav®'rltf tCAirn n.rrtKr iTIIr'rn ntenri r,y
eiat^lr ncmir ct< lt> »ri.' •»» rviatr
rtjrij(tp«rt T.vi^jy •■icif,! /»jp»d

W atiarrtj.Twnl al y". J'pO y"jt*rT(
« jn ptlRbvp cf IW.1 tr 1 npirfii.Irm vcs T,WU
to jr. lUA

IMe kem w-s emy it you arc a tJ.S perxn
■ itvUvl aJvo. Id gn* jt^ji cct'eci

UK in nwi prrVM rriat'vn) » llbr tpgtx-Jrp'
a-ts sitcr aixnsioe tc

1. vrrrPf inr "IM jna »eyviP(5 \ ear-cct iir
ittj at A-ot-nj ICT a ndnOr- lo tn is.!!.!)

2. Ce't'r v:<- av ro: >U>otl U> lo> mi(t
•AllfY>lV1l>0. t4
i fidp io«»o AiilrK«yi"o r

yn.Arrjl,'; nm-aufj^p
N you am a forrigo paiton. uh ii«

apprcfiriatf fotm W.t Srr Pub ill
W<iirrA1in.| rt Tai up HniT^iVPi Alrns ml
to-non Cmjliri.
tOMr: iT 9 •twetie' rn^ itu » 'vn xtf n-#.-
•i.pi n-.o M rf<A>««r'!'< irtimiw.Apmo

S ...p.|,sl.,>, v-.IA. .P 11.,.

f<vri iV-7

wrvK t» OMKuo om»Miii»i|T fxpyom niak,..^
terios fOj»-w-iu 10 -fjL nant tfOR ccrUip
mvisirp. PKPItiil Mwl gjj to ;i» les bOK i*
i.y£n pajnirrtt alter Ootereeier 3' 2tCt [rvH
after fysje-pOt-3' fWI' >» <a!M'toe*.*.
rr-.Rraanq " P9*n*«*t trial may Ba uOyoa lo
IW.-t.C ■rmtardiXtinClLOe-flpfrsi iliratfpin
rrc4« a^a bnrr ricnan}i! aanumiern ram
•arjtn p<*io">|H7»* (wy aPOcnlJiP
fAfPTrnti SPIT! tKHrq neat otaraiMA
snete irtnseettni ore ml vjt]ec( la eacSup
«.Uir<ii}p^

Sou 'A*l' not si^tirrr; lo fcaiKui i«lleida3*iQ
i-is f»i]Riiviis ynj lAcaM r ffu gvi the
rroAntei ycu eanect DS nxr fa pvpc
iRiniatAT'S mj 'r(ivt «l ftta taraoa eve^'
am 3ti<aerOi cr. yajt ia> icnxn
Paymant you laoeiva Mi ba utyMi u>
baca^i oTiraiieeing d*

t. 'Oj 49 nst limvi yOLT lilt ic me
•WILPSltT 31

i '3V du not te".ry yua Tiu i»r«n ittanco
|ua tM Pan u m»u:t<vi« en pajya ? '.t»
aeuiai :t

>. Isi; iRS leSt ire rKj.etiei (lui yco
'umnherl »T irvjrmci TItt or

« T-., laa hmv i»j tiiii jou *o Mt{Mi ir
backup wuipoang because you del mt rrecet
at yccr rf.espst jriS aiPdirWi tf yddi lai fun
iiur ■rvtmibv lifva arw 9iA«»iak pityi c»

I 9ui Or pd cml) IP tm leauMla m.Ti ynu
ve mt ubcrt la aXiVuliPi] onM 4
kbowe IkRi itpuiaOIt ipt«pril and sivtjepd
aceo.ni ipanta afisr lasj ipriji

Conan yiaycos ami payiirrr* ^ arep<ta
'rum hMAup wcnPodmg S<* ma imiraeaam on

I tra vf u-rur.ve irMiwoem fee If*
HeOdcater of rerm W-b

Penalties
laojtf (o nanltn TIN. R you I»i ;e r,mP yo,,
loi-cri fry Is a reeueism yeu re ulyKt id a
parsaiti el ISO 'rr eaci Sjcb 'afire inrsi year
'a'ure >9 due 10 icavmauo lauia «vi mi to
■AlBil neum.'
Cl»* penaky Im laha mlomaataen atttfi retoea
•a ivIIVieldbig. a ynj nnte .■ IdInt ylatr-tppi
iMlh na -C^eua-uat cash HVd rauEl Jn no
ttauup rrmnaiJi^ )IIJ »e uOncl !a « tM3
ponapy
Oianinal penalty lor faMylpo Mermatton
WfiAty Uifypg certihcaucm ni ainmaiiDPn
isay luOjK! icig 10 tirtn* pemluek achdro
fnei ana sp rtifrnonirifrt
lAwae if TINi. t< ife 'eouesiei Ouknes 0
ntn nrn n iiciaricn (/ rpdHSi u». ire

retauesse- mat Se •-utarci la cvi ana CN-inal
panamil

Crl 'h •u.'.'liW-9 Riv l.fCtn

Landscape Maintenance Services (Bid No. B-20I602IO-005)
24



^ '2c)(iOZoS^ooy

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-047

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the bid for janitorial
services submitted by Falls Facility Services, Inc. is hereby accepted; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to
enter into a contract, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with Falls Facility Services, Inc. for
same.

ADOPTED: This 11th day of April, 2016.

Council President

APPROVED: This 1 1th day of April, 2016.

Mayor

CERTIFICATION

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on April 11, 2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of
said meeting.

City Clerk

Falls Facility Sei-vices, Inc. Janitorial Services Contract 2016-047



Janitorial Service Bid Tabulation

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama

April 6, 2016,10 a.m.

Falls Facility

Services, Inc. Jani-King

Protek

Services, Inc.

ServiceMaster

Clean

1 City Hall $964.85 $1,427.00 $1,734.06 $2,546.00

2 Fire Administration 401.95 783.00 380.00 517.00

3 Fire Public Areas 315.25 450.00 48.00 113.00

4 Fire Stairwell 272.05 450.00 66.00 50.00

5 Fire Training 185.43 450.00 62.00 75.00

6 Total Monthly Fee (Fixed) 2,139.63 3,560.00 2,290.00 3,301.00

Included in monthly amounts above:

7 Interim maintenance carpet cleaning - City Hall first floor 577.76 1,309.00 150.00 300.00

8 Restorative carpet cleaning - City Hall first floor 865.00 1,119.00 1,463.00 600.00

9 Interim maintenance carpet cleaning - City Hall first floor 1000.00 1,093.00 150.00 700.00

10 Restorative carpet cleaning - City Hall first floor 1,369.00 1,017.00 2,472.00 1,150.00

Twice annual service (cost per service):

11 City Hall/Fire/Police exterior window cleaning 1,800.00 519.00 4,111.00 1,000.00

Annual Total (Line 6 times 12 plus Line 11 time 2) $29,275.56 $43,758.00 $35,702.00 $41,612.00

Other Qualifications: (1) (1) di d)

In business for at least seven (7) years Provided (1) di (1)

Bonded'^' (1) (il (1) d)

Alabama Immigration Act^^' (1) e-Verify

Provided

(1} e-Verify

Provided

At least ten (10) employees (1) (1) Ul

Resources
(1) (1) U) d)

Certificate of Insurance (liability and workers' compensation) Certificate

included'^'

(1) Certificate

included'^'

Provided

References'^' Provided Provided Provided Provided

Will be finalized in conjunction with the contract execution.



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made the day of April, 2016, by and between FALLS
FACILITY SERVICES, INC. ("Falls") and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA
("the City").

WHEREAS, Falls has been determined by the City to be the lowest responsible bidder in
response to the City's invitation to bid for janitorial services, dated February 26,2013; and

WHEREAS, the City and Falls deem it desirable to formalize and memorialize the terms
and conditions of their contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement:

1. Falls shall provide janitorial services to the City (including the library) in
accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of the specifications made the basis of the
City's invitation to bid and at the rate proposed by Falls in the proposal submitted to the City in
response thereto. The City's invitation to bid and the bid specifications set forth therein, as well
as Falls' bid proposed in response thereto (Appendix 1), are incorporated herein and made a part
hereof by reference.

2. This contract shall be terminable by the City for cause on seventy-two hours'
written notice to Falls, provided that Falls shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure or correct
any deficiency in performance that is the basis of a proposed termination for cause. Either party
may terminate the contract without cause on sixty days' notice to the nonterminating party.

ATTEST FALLS FACILITY SERVICES, INC.

By: By:

Its: Its:

ATTEST THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK,
ALABAMA

By: By:

Its: Its:



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND

FALLS FACILITY SERVICES, INC.
DATED APRIL 11,2016

THIS ADDENDUM ("the/this Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Falls Facility Services, Inc. ("the Contractor") dated April
11,2016.

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any
conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent
the conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b)
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment,
extension, or supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly acknowledged
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is authorized to waive,
modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council.

1. Definitions, For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings:

A. "The City''' refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its
constituent departments, boards, and agencies.

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation,
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the

Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor.

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors.

2. Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees,
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the
parties.

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs.

Page 1 of3



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor.

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest, The City shall not be liable for any late payment
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges
pending resolution of the dispute.

5. Indemnification; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations of Liability or Remedies. The
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge,
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void.

6. Choice of Law; Choice of Venue or Forum, The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of
law.

7. Construction of Addendum, Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter
of law.

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the
foregoing. Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify

Page 2 of3



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion.
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law. Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations
contained in this paragraph.

DATED this 11th day of April, 2016.

Falls Facility Services, Inc. City of Mountain Brook, Alabama

By : By :

Its: Its:

Page 3 of3



FACILITY SERVICES, INC.

Falls Facility Services, Inc.

1911 Jefferson Avenue, SW • Birmingham, AL 35211

P: 205.925.2594 • F: 205.925.9760 • Falisfacilityservices.com

cTis^
EMBER

•uitdlai

AtsMiaiMn
Utimatiaui



Professional Janitorial Service Proposal

Prepared for:

City of Mountain Brook
56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

Submitted By:

Falls Facility Services, Inc.
1911 Jefferson Ave S.W.

Birmingham, Alabama 35211
Teresa Petix.

Sales & Marketing

205-925-2594

Fax: 205-925-9760

teresa@fallsfacilityservlces.com
fallsfacilityservlces.com

^ FACILITY SERVICES, INC.

March 28,2016

Falls Facility Services. Inc.



INVITATION TO BID FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNI AIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT

BID DOCUMENT CON'ER SHEET

Advertised (his date: February 26. 2016 Bids to be opened: Anril 6. 2016 at 10:00 a.m.

Bid opening location: Mountain Brook City Hall
56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

Ladies and gentlemen:

Sealed bids shall be received by the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, at City Hall until the above date and lime, and
then publicly opened and read as soon thereafter as practicable. Bids made out in pencil shall not be accepted and all
bidders must use our bid form and show on the envelope the dale of opening. Please mark clearly "SEALED
BID-.1AN1T0R1AL SERVICES". The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and waive informalities,

All prospective bidders must attend the mandatory pre-bid conference on March 16, 2016 (sec Janitorial Bid Calendar).
To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law, including, but not limited to, Ala. Code §41-16-50,
et seq. (1975) (Appendix 1). Bidders will also be required to demonstrate compliance with the Alabama Immigration
Act.

Ail bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the service. This Bid Cover Sheet should be coniplcled and
submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids shall be clearly marked "SEALED BID"
and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project ("JANITORIAL SERVICES BID") for which the bid is submitted
and the date of bid opening.

The City reser\ es the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific infonnation shall be provided with the request
for bids. The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities.

iNy\j
^rrSTOaston, Purchasing Agent

Appendix I Code of Alabama §41-16-50, ct seq. (1975) (competitive bid law)
Appendix 2 Floor plan and floor surface legend
Appendix 3 Manufacturer cleaning specifications

SPECIFICATIONS (ATTACHED) ARE FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES, INCLUDING CARPET CLEANING, FOR
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY HALL OFFICES LOCATED AT 56 CHURCH STREET. AND FIRE DEPARTMENT
(ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES, PUBLIC AREA, STAIRWELL, AND TRAINING ROOM) LOCATED AT 102
TIBBET STREET.



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

JANITORIAL STANDARD BID FORM

APRIL 6,2016

Bid Itemization

Locations Specifications Frequency Monthly Fee

1. City Hall*" Items 2.1-2.23 As specified ^ 064 85
2. Fire Department Administrative Offices Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ Am , QR
3. Fire Department Public Area Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ 315.35
4. Fire Department Stairwell Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ 272.05
5. Fire Department Training Room Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $  185.43
6. Monthly Total $2,139.63

U) Includes entire building including stair
well and Chamber of Commerce offices

Cost per service $9,13Q.63

Fees for the following services are Included in items 1-5 above. Should City request
additional cleaning services, following are the amounts for each service:

Fee Per Cleaning

7. City Hall (first floor) Item 2.19 Interim maintenance

carpet cleaning ^ 577.76
8. City Hall (first floor) Item 2.20 Restorative caipet

cleaning ^ 865.00
9. City Hall (second floor)/Fire

Administrative Offices

Item 2.19 Interim maintenance

carpet cleaning
^1 ,000.00

10. City Hall (second floor) )/Fire
Administrative Offices

Item 2.20 Restorative carpet
cleaning

^1,369.00



Bid for Janitorial Services Addendum («B-20160208-009) City
of Mountain Brook

56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Aiabama 35213

1. Bid opening date and time: Wednesday, Aprii 6,2016, lOiOOa.m. Council Chamber (Room A108)

2. Square footage statistics (approximations):

a. City Hail (17,344 SF) & Chamber (475 SF) -17,819 SF

b. Fire Admin (4,455 SF), Training (616 SF) & Public Areas (480 SF) - 5.551 SF
c. Approximate square feet (SF) total - 23.370 SF

3. Specification 2.23 "Clean all extenor and interior glass/windows" is hereby modified and a new
section 2.24 has been added as follows:

2.23 Clean ail interior glass/windows in City Hall/Chamber building and Fire Administration
and Fire Training areas.

2.24 In June and December, clean ALL exterior windows of both City Hail/Fire building AND
Police building. [NOTE: The Standard Bid Form has also been modified to include an

itemization of the exterior window cleaning. The fixed fee for the semi-annual window
cleaning shall be presented upon completion of each said service [i.e., shall not be
included in the monthly invoice/billing)].

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

JANITORIAL STANDARD BID FORM

APRIL 6,2016

Bid itemlzation

Locations Specifications Frequency Monthly Fee
1. CityHailW Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ 964.85
2. Fire Department Administrative

Offices

Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ 401.95

3. Rre Department Pubiic Area Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ 315.25
4. Fire Department Stairwell Items 2.1-2.23 As specified $ 272.05



Fire Department Training Room 1  Items 2.1-2.23 As specified i $  185.43

■ Monthly Total $ 2,139.63
w Includes entire building including stair

well and Chamber of Commerce

offices

Cost per service below

The fees for the services listed in 7-10 below ARE included in items 1-6 above. Should

City request additional cleaning services, following are the amounts for each service. Item

11 below was added to clarify specifications 2.23 and 2.24 (see "Bid for Janitorial

Services Addendum (#B>20i60208'009)")
City Hall (first floor)

City Hail (first floor)

City Hall (second floor)/Fire

Administrative Offices

City Hall (second floor) )/Fire

Administrative Offices

City Hall/Fire AND Police buildings

(Cost per one time service. Service

shall be performed twice annually in

June and December)

Item 2.19

Item 2.20

Item 2.19

Item 2.20

Item 2.24

interim maintenance

carpet cleaning

Restorative carpet

cleaning

Interim maintenance S

carpet cleaning

Restorative carpet

cleaning

Exterior window

cleaning (to be

invoiced upon

completion of each

service)

Fee Per Cleaning

577.76

865.00

1 ,000.00

1 ,369.00

1 ,800.00

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

JANITORIAL STANDARD BID FORM- CONTINUED

APRIL 6, 2016

MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX

This bid must be notarized:

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this



/£gN M^Y HELEN WLLS
•*■• ••*/ Commissjon Expires

Mays,2018

Notary Publi Commission Expiration Date

BIDDER falls FACILITY SERVICES, INC.

ADDRESS JEFFERSON AVENUE SW

CITY BIRMINGHAM STATE ftL ZIP 35211

TELEPHONE 205.925. 2594 DATE 3/29/16



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-051

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the Mayor or the
City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to enter into an
agreement, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with Gillespie Construction, LLC with respect to
the construction of a sidewalk along Overbrook Road.

ADOPTED: This 11th day of April, 2016.

Council President

APPROVED: This 11th day of April, 2016.

Mayor

CERTIFICATION

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on April 11, 2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of
said meeting.

City Clerk

Gillespie Construction, Overbrook Road Sidewalk Construction Agreement 2016-051



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made the 11 day of April, 2016, by and between
GILLESPIE CONSTRUCTION, LLC ("Contractor") and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN
BROOK, ALABAMA (ffhe City").

WHEREAS, Contractor has been determined by the City to be the lowest
responsible bidder in response to the City's invitation to bid for Sidewalk installation on
Overbrook Rd, dated April 11,2016; and

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor deem it desirable to formalize and
memorialize the terms and conditions of their contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement:

1. Contractor shall provide an installed Sidewalk on Overbrook Rd in
Mountain Brook, AL in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of the
specifications made the basis of the City's invitation to bid and at the rate proposed by
Contractor in the proposal submitted to the City in response thereto. The City's invitation
to bid and the bid specifications set forth therein, as well as Contractor's bid proposed in
response thereto (Appendix 1), are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by
reference.

2. This contract shall be terminable by the City for cause on ten days' written
notice to Contractor, provided that Contractor shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure
or correct any deficiency in performance that is the basis of a proposed termination for
cause. Either party may terminate the contract without cause on sixty days' notice to the
non-terminating party.

ATTEST CONTRACTOR

By: By:

Its: Its:

ATTEST THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK,
ALABAMA

By: By:

Its: Its:



BID TABULATION

Overbrook Road Sidewalk project

April 6, 2016

1. Gillespie Construction LLC $33,925.00

2. D.B. Nooney LLC $36,804.00

3. Rast Construction Inc. $39,401.00



ADDENDUM I TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND

GILLESPIE CONSTRUCTION, LLC
DATED APRIL 11,2016

THIS ADDENDUM ("the/this Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Gillespie Construction, LLC ("the Contractor")
dated April 11, 2016.

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any conflicting
or inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent the
conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b)
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under
otherwise applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any
amendment, extension, or supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly
acknowledged or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is
authorized to waive, modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or
provisions without express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council.

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following
meanings:

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its
constituent departments, boards, and agencies.

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal,
quotation, or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under
which the Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the
City, including the payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in
exchange therefore.

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into
an agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City,
and includes vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to
the City with or without a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors,
suppliers, and subcontractors.

2. Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate
disputes or to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is
required by the agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is
a precondition to the pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights
and remedies available under such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the
Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, damages, etc.) than would be available
under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the arbitration or mediation proceeding
is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such proceedings (including the fees
of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the parties.

i. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for
attorney's fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent



such fees, costs, and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in
the absence of any contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefore.

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate
higher than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills
rendered to the City shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days
after rendition of a complete and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not
be subject to late payment charges pending resolution of the dispute.

5. Indemnification; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations of Liability or
Remedies. The City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the
Contractor or any other person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any
claim, cause of action, cost, charge, fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or
relating to the subject matter of the agreement or the performance or nonperformance
thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim
for relief of any kind that it may have against the Contractor or any other person, firm, or
entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of legal duty on the part of the
Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting on Contractor's
behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or extent
of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void.

6. Choice ofLaw; Choice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement
of terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising
thereunder or relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama
except to the extent otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The
venue of any suit, action, or legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by
reason of any asserted breach of duty arising out of or relating to the performance or
nonperformance of the agreement shall be Jefferson County, Alabama except to the
extent otherwise required by applicable principles of law.

7. Construction of Addendum. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or
impose any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the
Contractor against the City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available
to the City against the Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the
principal agreement or as a matter of law.

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully
comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the
Immigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen
Protection Act, which makes it unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire
or continue to employ an alien who is or has become unauthorized with respect to such
employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 requirements or fails to use E-Verify to
verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States for all of its new hires who are
employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor
shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized
alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally familiar
with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the
E-Verify Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing



work, and shall remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance
hereunder, and shall attach to its affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment
Verification and Memorandum of Understanding and such other documentation as the
Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the E-Verify Program.
Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any other party
with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall
include in all of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If
Contractor receives actual knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees
in the State of Alabama, it will remove that employee from the project. Jobsite or
premises of the City and shall comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of
1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama
Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require each of its subcontractors,
or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. If Contractor
violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law. Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages,
expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines,
penalties, and any other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure
to fulfill its obligations contained in this paragraph.

DATED this 11 day of April, 2016.

Gillespie Construction, LLC City of Mountain Brook, Alabama

By : By :

Its : Its :



tram W-9
JMiniwy ?«?!

Sectdftm (/»>«
kmwfKM

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

Give form to the

requestfif. Do not
send to tho IRS.

^ t Name

it Buuiis:<s lui^ira. t ftnm

j—I U>^v»t|irtl' r—.1 f pm
CtHKt^ ̂#cpr!.il£ boi l.. .i pnrrri»«fr ! I CcfppialKjri 1 i ^oilrwshp i i Oth« ►

fotmol from tMctiJO

AridiHS^. i^imbet, nmi ajH in aniln w).|

:% ymc. and ?IP liinJo

SibHW'VIK'i nanp ana aUori.*iA wptiansil

City of Mountain Brook
P. O. Box 13C009
Mountain Brook, AL 35213«0009

Lni .ict-oum njtnbcHSi b*,-#

Taxpayer IdentiBcation Wumbor (TIW)

' Social aacuiiy nunilMr €nief your UN tn irw> s^pprsprsto ho*. For nriiMrtwnl'i. thi% fs you r«c«l '.rscuiBy riimp^r iSSW
Howemr. (or a rasadent alton, vota proprietor, or rttsregnntod eirtity. see tko Part I (osttuctions on | { 4. I i I j
page 2. For other enafies, < is you eoipioyer ioercilicarion Cfcivj if you 00 nc< t^i-e a nun'iDe'. '——'——*^ -
see How to get a TIN 00 oape 2. _ ^
Note: the atcowir fs *1 roore i/ian ore /ia<«e. see rrte c/ian cn? cage 2 for 9uVPrfir^es on nivjie numOw | E«*>pioycf locmincatkm nmbvt
foroi^ j j I I i I j I
KBWni Certification
Under penaHies 0? peiyLify, • canf^- that
1. Tho r».iml»ir vhfwn m mK forn ei my cotreU taxpayer ipcfitificatian rumnef tor I .vr, a»ting fnr a numiser to or issixart :o me), and
2. I am not siit)(ect to tiaciiup v/thhokting tmnauso: (a) I am nxorrpi from Ivrckup Mthholrtruy. or lb) t Ivtvs rot cp?eri nsriHed try llie Iniemal

RevcrMo StT,v:a {IRS) thm I am vuhject to backup ■Archhokling an a result of a faiUrc to repart .til siietesi or driortonis, or (c) the IRS has
noltfiod mo thst i am no longnr r,'ahjnct to backup 'Adhhot3ii>;i. and

3. I an a u s. person tncltrSing a U S residem aiieni.
CcrtKicatlon tnstructions. vo.) irnist cross cut item 2 above tl you twiwie oeen ixcriBcI by tho iKS that ysu ate cureiiuy suSjeci 10 backus
■nalViOdiug bHuause you Itave f&lthLl iore()Oft at ireerest aisS dlvkleiids cti you tax reiu-'n. Fcr rfsal estate uaiwacitenr., ttum 2 ricos nc< aptsly
For mcntgage Vilctcst paid, acqusitsun or sUandraimatl Ol socuretl property, catu.z!ba!tDrr of iSebt. carctibuItorrK to nri ndmdunl rntrrmcrit
attsirigerrieni IIRAI, and gwrsialiy. payrrieiits sttus Ihan interest aiitl iasidcttds you are noi repuiied to sigtr lire Cerbficatfen. but ynu musi
pionde you ctnrfsci TIN. |5ee Pie iivjuuciiwis cn pviija 2)

Signature of
Here U.S. person ► Dale ►

Purpose of Foritt
A pcfKin Vktw 15 rnt^rcil Id file ais rrfcrriMto'i
leiwii *ith the tRS ftxKt gcit you' ccofo*
taipnytir eiRrcrcation rumbur |Itr<) 10 report, tcy
exairgils. income caiS lo ycu. rtssC estate
Ifarssacbtx'rs. mortgage imaresi yvxj pad.
acqufsilicfi tr abatrdurantril <il moJvtl P'Operty.
canreitatkin cT lieOt. t* cORtnbucorrr; you tr«i»
to an lUA.

Use form W-9 only it yoti arc a U.S. person
ImAKtltig 3 rcsiJent atrirt) to youf ccrrBct
IltV 10 aro p<irv>n rpqtxssrrrg it (ir>o reguestc;
anc. Bhicn applicable, to;

1. Cstttfy irw TIN yar are gsrng n. cercct ipr
yoj arc w'aifcng for a rwml>» to U.i- iSSiA<ll.

2. CcrtFy yeu are no: subrsrct 19 backup
vxiibryrklisg, er

J. Ctsim exempbco fierrj ixjckup wirTOniaing f.
yco are » U S cxerrpl ptyce

if you are a foreign pen»n. uu Ow
appropriate rorm W-d. Sec Pub. SIS,
VAtlvvjWieg el Tax en NcrresanM Aicns .-ind
Fonaijri Cnlilics.
Note: if a rt-tyoesKv prres ytU U ftxr/n Otfvv .'har
fcm it'-S' ro rwAACff yccsr »V, yw must etp rft?
rtKjcvfrmrS Aum -I »r « n(,t**r.wi),«ry. rn />««
torn iV-9.

What IS OBCKup vtrthnocaiivg? t^sotvs mekmy
ccflaitt pdyrtrenb to yuu iruU urwcf ccrLttR
ccocsiions wittit'oiii iv'd pay to the iRS ys% cr
5uch payments aher December 31. 3b01 Ctif'KI
after OvccwOw Jt. 2C0Jjl 14 catcd "backus
xvtnhoiclrtg.' Raymcrts tnst rrtay dc sabjccl to
twckup wthlttijfvj inclurk? imwesl, sJiyxJei'dS.
Crekcr aria Isaicr excharrge iransacicrrs. rsrtis.
toyaticti. nerrstrprjrjrrw pay. and wlain
ptyrrvots ttorr. lltTkog beet CpV^.torc Re?!
estate (raraactxns are ml sut^cct lo backup
•Uiriholctrxi

y'uu wll not l»n tulry.C ',u tackcp ArilrrsWiitg
lyr pnyn-e-Tis >i>j rocoi,* c >r*i gsa the
requester yccr correct TIN mavc 0>s proper
Cerbhitatoes snrj rtpcnt ill yter taxaWe lm»«Ss:
arid amdnnds cr, yaut tax relLtn.
PaynrofU* you rooeive xvS be «ub)ect to
backup vwdthokling K;

1. knu da nol furaivi yixr Till to the
't'duesU.v. <a

2. Vfiu do rot cefufy yuur TIN vthwi rcoures
Ictw ttni rurt II rttrrufToss cci page ? rot
tsctalsj. er

3. The IRS lelti U'c •equesiei that yeu
fiitn'.hed an incorrfic: TIN. ra

4 TJiir lira wis juj I'l.xl yuu jro to
backup wrchh<adr>g ntiCi-tusn wj dd nol ti-porl
all yew ircereiit tnll dMdenas u'l ywt tax return
ifcr rr.t>oflab»> ihteres: and di.r<»ni5s omyi. cr

S. Vuj do hrt ccfUFy to tlK: requester t'lal you
ara not sul^c-ct to txsckup 'ArtN'ialtlrig ^itKl>>f 4
ibcvo C'ti' reporteble iivenwl anB drvidei'B
.recounts cpaned after 19^3 ont^l

Crsrtarr pay«n. .ird payoinnr'i. are exempt
Item backup vrkhhi.iOng See the instruaicHVi on
page i .vKi ihc shpjraie Im-tnrctioixs lot Ore
Requester ot Form lV-9.

Ponaities
FaiDura to tumtsb TIN. Ii you !»i io rurnrsh your
ccrrect TfV tc a tecjev'.cr you are sutyccl 10 .1
perrity cf f-SO fiy each such 'ufwe yiless yccr
lalure is due 10 reasonubte rauie ar»,l run to
villfij irerycct
Civil penalty tor (also inlormation vrtth respect
to tviUtiwtdiRg, If yr».i make a lulse slatemert
vrrlh no restsmaWn ciwrt tlvY, resillts m no
tiaCkup rwUthdonq yuj are lubjecl to a JSfO
penaity
Crwninal penalty for fodstryiirg information
Wilfi.-(ty lalsfying certilicaticm of albrrti.ttinrfi
may SixistK! you to ccrnrnr ptrrkifthtn irtluong
fries and'or mFnsonircn!.
MisusB of TIWs. if she requester dsckisei cr
\iy^ "IN; « vlolautn cf Federa ists. u-e
recuestor nvsy be subrect to dvt ami cnii'ln.ii
phtiaiues

Cat Nd. 10231*term W-9 IRev l-ifO.?!



BID COVER SHEET
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

56 CHURCH STREET
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213

OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER)

SIDEWALK INSTALLATION ON OVERBROOK ROAD

Bid Request Posted this Date: March 25,2016 Bid to be opened this Date and Time: Anril 6. 2016 @ l-nn p

To Whom It May Concern;

Rrnni. ^ Oflicc of Jlic Purcliosing AgcHt in the City Hall. City of MountainBrook, Alabama, prior to the above specified dale and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at the date and time
specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter.

nq7s^ ssI? Alabama law, including, but not limited to. Ala. Code
Ato.'Sdc S3M3-9. " of t-nrxiUmcnt in ihe E-Verity program

'Vl bidders must use the bid fomi provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet .should be

•SPAi t^'n rmv" Pencil will not be accepted. Bid.s sliould be clearly marked.  .ALhD BID and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is submitted and the date of
bid opening. Alabama General Contractor's License number shall be clearly marked on the outside of the envelope.

the request for bids require a bid bond, in which case specific information shafi be provided with

f^rervcs the right to utilize life cycle cost analy.sis in determining the lowe.st responsible bidder in
vvhich case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities.

Sam S. Gaston, City Manager and Purchasing Agent

Specifications For Project No. Ml 05-2016: For the installation of sidewalk on Overbrook Rd.

BIDDER &^rJrocJ,dr^ UC

ADDRESS

TELEPHONE 30Z

EMAIL

CITY

i  Cd

STATE ZIP fsros

BID TOTAL (PER SPECIFICATIONS) $ 3J

Note: MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX

Tb f's bid must be signed beiow by bidder's princwal/officer/agent and notarized:

Airth Signature:

Printed Name:

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:^Idl ) l ̂  *'•.



Project ft
Roadway:

County
Llmtte

Oeociipton

V' M

OiMytimiK neat

JtlPamun

rconi Majntiir. Orroti Pjuwy to Park smiok «a
Siteoak o" triiign. alMtt ossvwav

Longth:

Laitlng:

Cattmata;

% OsalfiO Comptete;

Uats:

>C0 LF

t>ar.;F>ia

t>««orip(ton

Panmptt. Cut & Fa

t-ttHUepW SawC^t

1 r>am! B peas Qbas 7

Skc* PavM^

CcnstCTB Sidewatk a' TWrti

Ccrabiraton Curo & Gotei

trfoscn Cororai

tU-adwrav St-ii>»i>a

Tr*rtr C««rf>

Unn

Pf
Ten

IF

Ten

Unit Price

—JQl
:^c?o

S'OO

iPOQ.

T^Oo-

^OOO.

i_ '^oOO-'

EatiwatccI QuaniibDa

Quantity

I Oo

?

t-ro

Eatimttted'C^

Total

1000.

I

CslTO.

-212^^
-2q^
^oao

Orand Total

Mn»ii?Riiori at i> .'V

(2 C(nn;> s ;iJ 1

tSt l'W'j^aerx:y
Stttctai

Li

~

3<>f»nlr tn^aUa>- zn or

Owiaori' Rj



#

is-

. V'

iig"

t^- -«.'■•»
li = trs

• o :t<P#
«• o w

■C-':'^^"^"r-.-.J5
'-I# E}3^v-"  » ( ►Wk'^* ' iffy • '

3

<mg

I J/ V^'^^ J

iis
-v.*

rn^:;
S.-s
ZI  ■ ■ .̂

fllAsOl



Company iD Number: 533096

To be accepted as a participant In E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section
of the signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-VerIfy at 888-464-4218.

Employer GILLESPIE CONSTRUCTION LLC

SlONALD L GILLESPDS
Mame (Please Type or Print)

eiectronicaUv Signed
Signature

nue

1)3/31/2012
Date

Department of Homeland Security - Verification Division

USCIS Vcrificafion Division
hJame (Please Type or Print)

Electronically Signed
Signature

riue

P3/31/2012
bate

Information Required for th^ E-Verify Program

Information relating to your Company:

Company NamejoiLt-EgPlE CONSTRUCTION LLC

Company Facility Address:1666 HIGHWAY 6

JASPER, AL 36603

Company Alternate
Address:

County or Parish:

Employer identification
Number: jzeoTSOOis

WALKER

Page 12 of 13 | E-Veriiy MOU for Emptoyar | Revision Dale 09/01/00 www.dtis.flov/E-Verify



Company 10 Number: S33095

North American Industry
Classification Systems

Code: 238

Administrator:

Number of Employees: 5 to 9

Number of Sites Verified
for: 1

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide file number of sites verified for
ill each State:

•  ALABAMA 1 site(s)

Information relating to the Program Admlnlstrator(s) for your Company on policy
questions or operational problems:

Name: RONALD L GILLESFIE
Telephone Number: (205) 302 - 3344
E>maii Address:. lnorrls@kw8Cpa.uet

Fa,x Number:

Page 13 of 131 E-Vorify fidOU for Employer | Revision Dale 09/01/09 wvvw.dhs.gov/E-VerIfy



BID COVER SHEET

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER)

SIDEWALK INSTALLATION ON OVERBROOK ROAD

Bid Request Posted this Date: March 25.2016 Bid to be opened this Date and Time: April 6.20J6 @ 3:00 p.m.

I o Whom It iVIav Concern:

Bids shall be sealed and dcli\ercd to the Oftice of the Purchasing Agent in the Citv Hall. Citv of Mountain
Brook. Alabama, prior to the above specilled date and time. Bid-s shall be'^publicK opaied at the date and time
specified above or a.s soon as practicable thereafter.

lo be considered b> the Cit}. a bid must compK with .Mabama law. including, but not limited to. Ala. Code
(1975) ̂$41-16-50 el seq. and -U-I3-I et seq. and provide dixumentation of enrollWnl in the E-Veril\ program
pursuant to Ala. Code §31-13-9. * ^

Ail bidders must u.se the bid form provided b\ the Citv for the project, fhis Bid Cover Sheet should be
completed and .submitted vvith the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids should be clearly marked
.SI;.AI..l:D BID and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is submitted and the date of
bid opening. Alabama General Contractor s License number shall he clearly marked on the outside of the envelope.

7hc Citv reserves the right to require a bid bond, in which case .specific infomiation shall be provided with
the request for bids.

ITic Citv' reserves the right to uti)i/e lite cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest respon.sible bidder, in
which case specific information shall be prov ided with the request for bids.

The Cit}- reserv es the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities.

Sam S. Gaston, City Manager and Purcltasing Agent

Specifications For Project No. MI 05-2016: For the installation of sidewalk on Overbrook Rd.

bidder p, /?, telephone J
ADDRESS
EMAIL KA ̂

CITY v'J;/ STA LH / 71P

BID TOTAL (PER SPECIFICATIONS) S ,

Note: MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX

This bid must be signed below by bidder's principai/officer/asenf and notarized:

Auih Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this

dav of . 20 .

Notary Public
My Commission E.xpires:



BID COVER SHEET

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER)

SIDEWALK INSTALLATION ON OVERBROOK ROAD

Bid Request Posted this Date: March 25.2016 Bid to be opened this Date and Time; April 6.2016 @ 3:00 p.m.

To Whom It May Concern:

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the OtTtcc of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall. City of iVIountain
Brook. Alabama, prior to the above spccitied date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at tlie date and time
specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter.

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law. including, but not limited to, Ala. Code
(1975) §§41-16-50 et seq. and 3I-I3-I et seq.. and provide documentation of enrollment in the B-Verify program
pursuant to .Ala. Code §31-13-9.

.All bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project Ibis Bid Cover Sheet should be
completed and submitted with the bid. Bids completed In pencil will not be accepted. Bids should be clearly marked
"STALED BID" and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is submitted and the date of
bid opening. Alabama General Contractor's License number shall be clearly marked on the outside of the envelope.

Ihe City reserves the right to requiie a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be provided with
the request for bids.

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible bidder, in
which case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities.

Sam S. Gaston. City Manager and Purchasing Agent

Specifications For Project No. MI 05-2016: For the Installation of sidewalk on Overbrook Rd.

BIDDER TELEPHONE 2.©^- (o?>

ADDRESS ILO

EMAIL JVNftrsVAATftuo ̂

CITY STATE Ac- ZIP

—BID TOTAL (PER SPECIFICATIONS) S 3^^T0U p

Note: MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX

This bid must be signed betow by bidder's principal/oflicer/agent and notarized:

Auth Signature

Printed Name: ft

V, (7.

Sworn to anisubscribed befor

4^day of . 20/6

Notary Public
My Commission Expires

before me on this

MY COMMISSION EXPffiE$0CIO8ER6i 2018


